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JUROR NUMBER NO. 137: I think the same thing, I den’t like to
-— I don't -- I don’t know how it will be, but I think after all
the facts T711 be fine,

MS. SUDANO: So 1if you're selected a8 a juror in this case,
you’d have to go back and deliberate with 11 other people and théir
strangers. You've never met them other than sitting here this
morning; 1s that going to be an issue for you?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 137: Nc.

MS., SUDANO: So no issues going back there and deliberating?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 137: DNo.

MS. SUDANQO: Would you be the type of person that could
participate in the process and -- and share your opinion with
everybody else?

JUROR NUMBER NC. 137: I believe so. But just like now I
think it might take me a_little bit longer than others.

M3, SUDANQ: But you think you can get there?

JUROR NUMBER NO, 137: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Ckay. So, I just asked the question of whether
or not ycu all would be comfoftable with somebody with your state

of mind iindecipherable] the State of Nevada. 5o let’s flip it

around. So would you all be comfeortable -- I'm going to start with
you, Ms. Carter -- would you be comfortable if you were the
Defendant -- if you were in the Defendant’s positicn with somebody

like yourself with your state of mind serving on a jury?

JURQOR NUMBER NO. 137: I believe sc,
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MS. SUDANO: And why is that?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 137: Just for the same reason that it’s hard
for me te make a decision, so T think having that kind of always
pecking at something, but not really sure. Maybe it would help
someone else give morelinformation.

MS. SUDANO: ©Now is there anybody else who feels differently
that if they were sitting in the Defendant’s positicn, they would
not want somebody with their state of mind on the jury? I’'m seeing
no hands on that guestion.

Now, I just asked Ms. Cérter the guestion of whether or
not you all would be comfortable and able to deliberate with a
group of strangers to all come to a verdict; is there anybody who
feels that they couldn’t participate in that process or couldn’t
work together with the other members of the jury te come to a
verdict? TI'm sszeing no hands on that gquestion.

Bave any of vou ever been a witness or participated in a-
trial in any way other than the folks who have been jurors
previously? Mr, Baumer, number 1257

JUROR NUMBER NO. 125: One, two, five, yes. Expert witness in
a contract dispute.

MS. SUDANO: Just one time?

JURCR NUMBER NO., 125: Just one time.

MS. SUDANO: Okay. And that sounds like it would have been a
civil case, correct?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 125: Correct.
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MS. SUDANO: So you understand also that the burden in a civil
case are different than they are in & criminal case?

JUROR NUMBER NC., 125: Correct.

MS. SUDANO: Now, anything about that experience that would
affect your ability to be fair and impartial here?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 125: Not -- not that I can think of, no.

MS. SUDANO: And you could set asgide your --

JUROR NUMBER NO. 125: That experiesnce.

MS. SUDANO: -- roll and your expertise and your understanding
and just focus on the facts represented here?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 125: Absolutely.

MS, SUDANO: And I can assure you there’s no éontract dispute
here, sc it's going to be very different.

JURQR NUMBER NO. 125: That’s refreshing.

MS. SUDANO: 1It’ll be shorter and more interesting that your
trial; how’s that?

Okay. Now, who all here watches CSI or NCIS5, Law and

Order; any of those shows? Got a bunch of hands. I'm going to
have you pass it over if you would, sir, to Ms. Klem, and that’s
badge number 124.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: Right.

MS. SUDANO: And what do you watch?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: All of them to some extent, but Law and
Order mostly; that’s one I watch the most.

MS. SUDANO: ©Now, do you watch some of the non-fiction shows
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as well, the Dateline and the 48 hours?
JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: Uh-huvh. At times, yes.
MS. SUDANO: But mainly Law and Order?
JUROR NUMBER NO., 124: Uh-huh.

MS. SUDANO: So you understand that shows like Law and Order

and CSI, those are all fictional shows?

JUROR NUMBER NO, 124: Yup, I do.

MS. SUDANQ: Do you understand that some of the things that
happen in those cases are very different than how things actually
happen in the real world?

JURQR NUMBER NO. 124: Yes.

M&, SUDANO: And do vou watch scome of the CSI type shows as
well?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: Cccasionally.

M3. SUDANQ: 2And so in those shows they've got all sorts of
cool ways of --

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: Right.

MS, SUDANC: finding the --

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: Right.

MS. SUDANO: -- the bad guy or --

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: Right.

MS, SUDANC: - ~=- tracking scmebody down?

JUROR NUMBER NG. 124: Right,

MS., SUDANO: and they rely a lot on forensic evidence. Do you

understand that again that sort of forensic evidence sometimes
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isﬁ’t available in the real world?

JURCR NUMBER NO, 124: Yes, 1 do.

MS. SUDANO: And.even if that technology does exist in the
real world, sometimes it’s not used by agency such as Metro?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124; Yes.

MS. SUDANO: So is there anything about those shows, Law and
Order, CSI, that’s going to affect your ability to be a fair and
impartial juror in this case?

JURQR NUMBER NO. 124: No.

MS. SUDANO: Now are you going to require the State to have
forensic evidenge or to go through all the -- the CSI type things
to preve our case to you beyond a reasonable doubt?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 124: No. Because I know sometimes that’s
not available. or even appropriate.

MS. SUDANC: Okay. And so would you be able toe follow the law
if the law told you that witness testimony by itself is sufficient?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 124: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: So you wouldn’t require any of that other?

JURCOR NUMBER NO. 124: ©No. No.cf

MS. SUDANO: Now, any of the other folks that watch CSI pass
it down. Mr. 0’Neill, did you say you watch some C3I shows?

JURCR NUMBER NO, 120: I've watched it before, yes.

MS. SUDANO: Now, do you have ahy_issues with that any
different --

JUROR NUMBER NO., 120: DNo. Not at all,

B6
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MS. SUDANO: And I see you understand as well that --

JURCR NUMBER NO. 120: <Correct.

MS. SUDANO: that some of that technology Jjust isn’'t
available?

JURQOR NUMBER NC, 120: Right.

MS. SUDANO: Or even if it ig --

JURQOR NUMBER NC. 120: Right.

MS. SUDANQO: -- available it doesn’'t exist in every —--

JURCR NUMBER NO. 120: It’s TV.

MS. SUDANO: in every particular case, right? So any of
the other CSI folks, does anvbody else have any issue with -- with
separating the CSI type shows and the Law and Order type shows from
what you might see here in the courtroom today?

Is there anybody who would have an issue following the
law if the law telils vou that witness testimony alone can be enocugh
to prove gﬁilt beyond a reasocnable doubt? I don’t see any hands on
that one. 8So I'm going to ask it a different way Jjust to make
sure. So is there anybody here who would require some sort of
forensic evidence or scmething beyond just the testimony of
witnesses in crder to be able to find the Defendant guilty beyond a
reagcnable doubt? Ckay. I'm not seeing any handslon that.

I just had specific questions now on some of you.

Mr. Merkley.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 132: Yes.

MS. SUDANQ: Number 132. Now, you said you started as a juror
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in a criminal case in the past; is that correct?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 132: Correct.

MS. SUDANO: Now, the Judge already ilet you know there’s not
going to be any blood or gore in this particular case.

JURCR NUMBER NO, 13Z: That’'s good for me.

7MSfu§UDANO: Yes. 8o, anything aboul your priocr jury
experience or maybe not being able to finish your prior jury
experience that’s going to affect your ability to be here today?

JURCR NUMBER NOQ. 132: I den’t believe so.

M5. SUDANO: Are you excited to get all the way through
potentially and see --

JURORVNUMBER NO, 132: Hopefully.

MS, SUDANO: ~-- what happens at the end?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 132: Yes.

M5. SUDANO: ©Now I had one other question for you. You and
your wife are both retired,'right?

JURCR NUMBER NC. 132: Yes.

MS, SUDANO: What did you do before you retired?

JURCR NUMBER NO, 132: I worked for the Beeing Company in
Huntington Beach, California.

MS. SUDABNO: What did you do for Boeing?

JUROR NUMBER NO, 132: I worked in a job functicn called
configuration management which is an engineering management

discipline involving engineering changes to products. And I

specifically worked on a program to provide combat, survivor evader
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radios to our servicemen,

MS. SUDANO: Now what did your wife do befcre she retired?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 132: She worked part time for the County of
San Bernardino. In Oakland she was the museum director for the
Oakland Schcolhouse Museum.

MS. SUDANC: Thank you, sir. T think those were my only
questions for you.

Ms. Peterson. You've also been on a jury.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: And that’s badge number 138.

JURCR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes [indecipherable].

MS, SUDANO: And, ma’am, were you on a civil jury or criminal
Jjury?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Civil.

MS. SUDANO: ©Ckay. And same thing, yvou understand that the
burden in a criminal case is different than a burden in that civil
case?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: ©Now overall do you think your experience in -=- on
that jury was a positive one or a negative one?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 138: It was positive.

MS. SUDANC: 5S¢, anything about that experience that would
rrevent you from being falr and impartiazl here today?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 138: No.

MS. SUDANQO: Who else did we have? Ms. Bruce, we already
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talked about your jury service.
Mr. Hall, you were also a jurer.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 147: Yes.
MS. SUDANO: That’s badge number 147.

JUROR NUMBER NO, 147: Yes. I served on two civil trials in

|{Arizona.

MS. SUDANO: Were you the foreperson on either of those
juries?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 147: Yes, I was.

MS. SUDANO: ©One or both?

JURCR NUMBER NO, 147: One.

MS. SUDANC: One. Okay. And you understand as well -- oh,
this was -- you said it was & while ago, right?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 147: Thirty years. More than thirty
probably.

MS. SUDANC: So, you understand that the burden is different
in a civil case than a criminal case?

JUROR NUMBER NC. 147: Yes, I do.

MS. SUDANO: And the Judge will give you the law as it appli
to these particular facts in the case here before you?

JURCR NUMBER NC. 147: Right.

MS. SUDANO: And you could set aside what you learned in tha
-- or those Arizona cases from 30 years ago?

JUROR NUMBER NC. 147: That’ll be easy, veah.

MS. SUDANO: Yeah. To the extent, do you remember any of it

90
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JUROR NUMEBER NO. 147: Yes, I do.

MS. SUDANC: And any ~- was your prior jury service positive
or negative as far as experiences?

JURCR NUMBER NG, 147: I would describe it as neutral really.

MS. SUDANO: So anything about those experiences that would
affect your ability to be fair and impartial here today?

JUROR NUMBER NO., 147: No.

MS. SUDANO: Anything about those experiences that makes you
either really want to serve or really not want to serve on a jury
in the future?

JURQR NUMBER NO. 147: No.

MS. SUDANO: WNo. Okay. Let’s start with Ms. Quimby. TIs it
Ms. Quimby-Niceols? I'm scrry. Badge number 148

JUROR NUMBER NO. 146: One, four, six.

MS. SUDANO: Oh. I can’t read my handwriting. Okay. Now,
ma’am, you said years and years ago you were cited for underage
drinking.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 146: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Was that here in Las Vegas?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 146: No. It was in Mcapa Valley.

MS. SUDANO: Okay. And did the Sheriff's office or
Metropolitan Police Department respond to that?

JURCR NUMBER NC. 146: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Do you think that you were treated fairly at that

time?
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JURQR NUMBER NO, 146¢:; Yes,

MS. SUDANO: Now, anything about that experience that would

affect your ability to be fair and impartial here?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 146: No.

MS. SUDANO: It was a long time ago, right?

JURQR NUMBER NO. 146:; Long time ago.

MS. SUDANO: Okay. And then Mr. Kitts, badge number 145 all
the way up front. You also said that you were accused of a DUI and
& minor in possession?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: Yes. That was in Washington.

MS. SUDANO: Qkay. So same thing that would have been when
you were a teenager, right?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 145: Correct.

MS. SUDANO: Right. Do you think that you were treated fairly
by the agency that stopped you?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: 3Sure.

MS. SUDANO: Do you think that you were treated fairly by the
criminal justice system as a whole?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Now, you understand that the agency that you
dealt with up in Washington is different than the Metro officers
that you mith hear from down here?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: Right.

MS. SUDANO: And whatever happened up there, can you sat that

aside and -- and just be fair and impartial with the officers that
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may testify here?

JUROR NUMBER NO, 145: Sure. I711 try.

MS. SUDANC: Anything about that experience that would affect
your ability to be fair and impartial?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 145: No.

MS. SUDANO: Ms. Bruce, I have one more guesticn for you;
that’s badge number 128,

JUROR NUMBER NO. 128: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Now you work or worked for Adam Laxali, right?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 128: Yes.

MS5. SUDANO: Whe's the Attorney General?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 128: Correct.

M5, SUDANQ: So the Attorney General is one prosecuting
agency. The District Attorney’s Office is a separate prosecuting
agency, right?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 128: Right.

MS. SUDANO: So, vyour work for the Attorney General, was that
-— 1s that more political in the campaign side of things cr are you
actually involved in the day to day handling of cases?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 128: Just the political side of things on
the campaign. |

MS. SUDANCO: So, day to day no involvement with what the
Attorney General’s Office is doing?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 128: Just in respect of learning abcut it

and being able to promote it through his social media on the

93

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Tbarra
C-15-308774-1

262




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

|this case to you bevond a reasonable doubt; does the -- and you

campaign side.

MS. SUDANO: Now, anything about that experience that’s going
to affect your ability to be fair and impartial here?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 128: I don’t think so.

M3, SUDANO: So, for instance, say that the State can’t prove

have to come back with a verdict of not guilty --

JURCR NUMBER NO. 128: Uh-huh,.

MS. SUDANQ: -- vou’ll be able to do that, right?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 128: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Now, anything abkout having to come back with a
not guilty verdict it would be particularly difficult for you
because you do work for a prosecuting agency?

JURCR NUMEBER NO. 128: No.

MS. SUDANOC: Okay. So you’'d have nc issue goiﬁg back and
sayving, hey, I found him not guilty?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 1Z28: Correct.

MS. SUDANO: ©Okay. And then similarly, you’re not going to
hold the State to a higher burden or anything just because Qou’re
familiar with the Attorney General and maybe some of their
policies?

JURCR NUMBER NC. 128: No.

MS. SUDANQ: All right. Can you pass that over to Ms. Marino,
badge number 1297 Ms. Marino, vou taught for a number of years.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Yes, 25.
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MS, SUDANO: And you said that vou worked a little bit at
Child Haven, right?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Right.

MS. SUBANO: How long were you at Child Haven?

JUROR NUMBER NO, 129: Three years.

MS. SUDARNQO: Were you -- what were you teaching at Child
Haven?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 129: I was teaching grades 3 through 5 or 2
through 4, whatever was needed. As kids came in, we regrouped
frequently, but elementary.

. M5, SUDANO: And so those kids were being taught by yourself
and other individuals --

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Right.

MS. SUDANO: -- instead of going back to the schools that they
nad come from?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Right. They were housed on the campus
and we were their teachers whiie they were there.

M&. SUDANO: 2nd then you said -- I think that the quote was
something along the lines of it was meore like social work than it
was fteaching?

JURCOR NUMBER NO., 12%: It was.

MS. SUDANO: And so a lot of those kids were coming through
the juvenile justice system either through their parents or through
themselves —--

" JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Right.
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MS. SUDANO: =~- is that fair?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Right, Parents mostly through abuse or
neglect or homelessness or drug addiction, whatever the problems
with the families.

MS. SUDANO: And so would you said that you kind have a
familiarity with the juvenile justice system through that?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: I guess a sure tall experience. We
were never privy to any specific information. 1 was --—

MS. SUDANC: That was the Court cases or whatever was
happening in the system was kind of apart from what you were doing?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 129: Right. We weren’t allowed to ask and
nobody told us. -

MS. SUDANO: So anything about that experience and what you
may have learned about the justice system through that that would
affect your ability to be fair and impartial here?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: I don’t think so.

MS. SUDANO: I think that’s it. So, open this cne up to you
again, Ms. Marino, just ‘cause you were my lucky person with the
mic. Judge Bixler already asked you all I believe if you would be
able to follow the law. Now do you understand that even if you
don’t disagree with the law we’re.not really here to change the law
today, so you just have tb follow the law as it’s given to you/

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Do you have any issues with that?

JURGR NUMBER NQ. 12%: No.
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MS. SUDANO: Anybody else in the panel that would have any
issues justrfollowing the laws that’s given and separating that
from the ability tc change the laws as it's written? Seeing no
hands on that.

Ms. Marino, again, do you promise if you're selected as a
juror to do the absolute best that you can with this case?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Yes,.

M3, SUDANO: You can give it the weight and seriousness that
it’s entitled to?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 129: Yes.

MS. SUDANQO: ©Now is there anybody else who can’t make that
same promise, you can’t promise that they'li do the bhest that they
can with this case? Seeing no hands.

and, Your Honor, with that T would pass for cause.

THE COURT: Very good. Counsel.

MS, SPELLS: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. And actually
good afterncon, My name is Jasmin Spells and I -~ if you don’t
mind I‘'m going to go by first names ‘cause that’s what we’ve been
going by most of the morning.

Now,lhow many of you guys do not have a cellphone?
Seeing one hand. I expected to see none.
Mr. David, badge number 147.
JURCR NUMBER NO. 147: Yes, I am.
MS. SPELLS: And you don’t have a cellphone?

JUROR NUMB®FR NO, 147: I do not.
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MS. SPELLS: Do you only use a house phone?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 147: I do.

MS. SPELLS: And what do you do in case of emergency?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 147: Well, my wife has a cellphone.

MS. SPELLS: Okay. And everyone else, do the rest of you guys
have cellphcnes? Out of the individuals who do have .cellphones,
how many of you guys purchased your cellphone as part cf a |
contract? Majority of you guys.

I want to switch gears just a little bit. How many of
you guys.sitting here this morning -- guys and women I should say -
- think it would be better for -- no, let me take that back -- how
many of you guys believe that as defense attorneys we should put on
witnesses? Seeing no hands.

How many of you all believe that a person who is charged
in a crime be called that individual a Defendant, Mr. Ibarra, that
he should testify at his own trial? Ms. Mary?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Mary Peterson. Mary Peterson.

MS. SPELLS: And badge number 138. And you believe that a
Defendant named in a crime should testify at their own trial?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: And can you tell me why?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138; Well, it just seems falr. I’'d want to
hear all -- both sides, one on one personally.

MS. SPELLS: And can you think of a reason why an individual

would decide not to testify at hisg or her own trial?
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JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Either possibly their attorneys
suggested not too for whatever legal reasons. That’s probably the
only -- the conly reason --

MS. SPELLS: Okay.

JURCR NUMBER NO. 138: -- that I could come up with on short
notice.

M$, SPELLS: Would vyvou hold it against Mr., Ibarra cr the
defense if he chose nct to testify?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: No.

MS. SPELLS: And you could still be fair and impartial if he
chose nct to testify?

JUROR NUMBER NOC. 138: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: You could weigh the evidence on both sidesg?

JURQOR NUMBER NC. 138B: Yes.

MS. SPELLS5: If the --

JUROR NUMBER NO., 138: I would think it would help him though,
but that just me speaking.

M3. SPELLS: Now if the Judge teld you that there’s no
requirement for a Defendant to testify, would vou take that into
consideration in your own thcughts?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes.

M3, 3PELLS: ©Now, can anyone else think of a reason why an
individual charged with a crime of chocsing not to testify in their
own trial? Let’s come to Mr. Nicholas. Are you badge number 1457

What is the reason that you think a person charged would choose not
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to testify?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: Well, it’s not -- it’s not reguired to.
If you don’'t want to self-incriminate thét advice [indecipherable]
that he mentioned. |

MS., SPELLS: Now, can you imagine that a perscn may be
nervous?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: Uh-huh.

MS. SPELLS:. Do you think that would possibly be a reason that.
someone may nobt want to testify?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 145: Most definitely if they put themselves
out there and they seem nervous cor scaraed cutside of reasons of
being in this, then that could be portrayed tc the jury.

MS. SPELLS: And what about a language barrier?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: That tco.

MS. SPELLS: So, 1f Mr. Ibarra chose not to take the stand,
would you hold that against the defense?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145: No.

MS. SPELLS: Could you be fair and impartial?

JUROR NUMBER NC. 145: Yes.

M5, SPELLS: Now along those same lines, tell me, Mr.
Nicholas, what you think is worse; is it worse to let a guilty man
go free or to convict an innocent person?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 145:; I think the worst is convict an

innocent person.

MS. SPELLS: Is there anyone in the panel who believes that it
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1 [|lwould be worse to let the guilty man go free or to convict an

I 2 [linnocent person? Okay. I’'m seeing no hands, so that would be a
1 3 |{no.

4 Now Judge Bixler has gone over it just a little bit and
‘% 5I'm sure he’s going to go over it in more detail later. But he

6 ||will let you know that the State is the only party that has the

7 {|burden in this case and the defense doesn’t have any burden. They
8 ||don’t have to put on any witnesses or de anything. And earlier he
9 ||made the comment that the defense could sit and play solitaire.

10 ||Does anyone have a problem with that? ©Not seeing any hands.

L

11 Now I'm gocing to talk a little bift just about how you
12 ||deal with disagreements and conflicts, so I wanted to speak with
13 {{Ms, Christina. 2nd are vou badge number 1267

14 JURCR NUMBER NO. 126: Yes, I am.

15 MS, SPELLS: 2nd you indicated that you were a preschool

16 || teacher? |

17 JURQCR NUMBER NO. 126: Yes,

— 18 MS. SPELLS: Now, is it safe to say that in your job

19 ||environment some of the preschoolers have some conflict?
20  JUROR NUMBER NO. 126 Oh yes. All the time.
21 - MS. SPELLS: What are some of the skills and things that you
22 ||do to resolve those conflicts?
23 JUROR NUMBER NO. 126: Well, I sit with them one on cne to
24 || talk with them. And normally I’11l bring the other one after Ifve

25 [|talked with the whose caused the conflict. And, you know,
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apologize and talk with them. TheY’ll sit by themselves for a
little awhile, think about what they did and just little things

like that.

MS. SPELLS: So in doing that are you trying to determine what

actually happened?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 126: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: You’re kind of like an investigater at the time?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 126: Uh-huh,

MS. SPELLS: Very similar tc what we are asking all of you who

are going to be jurors to do here.
JURCR NUMBER NO. 126: Uh-huh,
MS. SPELLS: And what are some .of the things you use to

determine who is telling the truth?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 126: That’s a goocd questicn. I don’t know.

I normally bring mayvbe ¢ne ¢f the other aides over, another set o
eves, or one of the clder kids who may have saw it. Get another
eyewitness,

MS. SPELLS: 0Okay. And can you pass the mic -- if you don't
mind T want to ask the same guestion of Ms, Jean. Ars you badge
number 129, Ms, Jean? You’ve been teaching for 26 years?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: And I want to direct the same question to you;
during that time period, what are some cf the things you do to de

with conflicts between children?

£

al

JUROR NUMBER NO. 129: Same thing, talk to them individually.
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' language --

See if there’s anybody who witnessed exactly what happened.

Schools have very strict procedures. I know we go through it. It
beging with that. Make a written statement from each child. Then
gather any witnesses and if -- if need be turn it over to a higher
power.

M5, SPELLS: Thank you. Now to the panel, can anyone think of
some things that you would use while listening tc witnesses to kind
of determine whether an individual is telling the truth? Ms. Mary,
badge number 138.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes.

MS5. SPELLS: Go zhead please.

JURQR NUMBER NO. 138: Body language.

M3, SPELLS: That is a great one.

JURCR NUMBER NQ. 138: I really pay attention to that.

M§. SPELLS: 0Okay. 5So vou're going to be looking at the body
JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Tt’'s not the only, vou know, but it;S -
- it’s something I pay attention too with a lot ¢f people.

MS. SPELLS: And 1s there a certain body language that vou
think signifies that someone is more honest?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 138: The eyes.

M5. SPELL3: Okay.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: 1If they’re looking down cr they’'re --
they’re avoiding you or whoever is speaking to them. Not feeling

strong and their stature.
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MS. SPELLS: Okay.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: S0 --

MSf SPELLS: And, Ms. Mary, you’re also retired educator,
right?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes,

- MS. SPELLS: And what age group did you teach?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 138: Well, it was a special ed class and I
was teacher assistant. Each year was different, but it was cne
through sixth. I mean, off and on. A few here, a few there.
Depending in the year.

MS. SPELLS: Would you agree with me that culturally sometimes
looking down could be a.sign of respect?

JUROR NUMBER NG. 138: Yeg., I learned that there.

M5. SPELLS: Okay.

JURQR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes,

MS. SPELLS: And so someone who 1s looking down possibly may
still be telling the tiuth and ig just showing more respect than
trying to be dishonest; would you care to say?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes, it is. Recause we did have
Hispanic children and I was not accustomed to the different
cultures and it was brought to ﬁy attention. And I found that very
interesting and then it opened my eyes, so to speak.

Ms. SPELLS: So, during the course of this when you are
evaluating beody language, you can take into account that maybe some

culture’s body language mean something different and is not always
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a sign of dishonesty?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: That’s true. Good reminder. Uh-huh.

MS. SPELLS: And anything about that experience that is going
to lead vou to not be fair and impartial to everything else?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: No.

MS. SPELLS: Thank you. Now I wanted to direct a question to
Mr. Richard; are you badge 1277 You indicated that you do
surveillance?

JUROR NUMBER NO., 127: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: Is that in a casino or retail shop?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 127: Casino. |

MS. SPELLS: And during the course of your job duties, do you
deal a lot with police officers?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 127: Yes,.

M3. SPELLS: Do you ever have to write any statements?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 127: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: And in those statements are you ever using like
any legal words as far as making a determination to what crime
easily was committed.

JUROR NUMBER NO, 127: No. We just put our pcint of view of
what we saw witnessed.

MS. SPELLS: Okay. And have you ever had a bad experience on
your Jjob dealing with the officers?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 127: No.

MS, SPELLS: Fair to say they’ve all be positive experiences?

1G5
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JUROR NUMBER NO. 127: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: Anything about having such a close relationship
with officers going to prevent you from being neutral here?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 127: No.

MS. SPELLS: Fair and unbiased?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 127: No.

M3. SPELLS: And if you could pass the microphone up just a
little bit, I wanted to speak with Mr. Timothy who is -- are you
badge 1317 |

JUROR NUMBER NO. 131: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: Good merning. Are you -- are a cage cashier; is
that correct?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 131: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: And same thing, do ycu often have a lot of
dealings with officers during the course of your employment?

JURCR NUMBER NO. 131: No. ©Not really.

MS. SPELLS: ©No. Not really. Okay. Thank you. If you could
pass the mic, we’re going to go up one mere time to Ms. Mary again.
Badge 138, right?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: Yes, it is.

MS, SPELLS: I believe you indicated that your daughter is a
nanny and a legal secretary?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 13B: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: Does she do civil or criminal?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: She is just new to this. Actually her
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during the course of the trial? " Okay. And I'm seeing no hands for

boss who is the mom of the little girl she watches and has been for
five years, she asked my daughter if she wanted to be trained in
her office.
MS. SPELLS: Sure.
JURCR NUMBER NOQO, 138: So that’s all I know.
MS. SPELLS: Do you know if the office does civil or criminal
law or both?
JUROR NUMBER NO. 138: I think it's both.
MS., SPELLS: Oh okay.
JURCR NUMBER NO. 138: And no specific cases are ever
discussed with me, but just in general I think that’s the case.
| MS. SPELLS: Now at the conclusion of -this trial, if you are
chosen to be a juror, you will have to deliberate with other
jurors. Each of you will do that. Is anycne going to have
difficulty making known their opinion if they are in the minority?
Seeing no hands.
Angd does everyone feel comfortable with expressing their

thoughts and ideas about any of the evidence that you have heard

that.

Brief indulgence, Your Honor.

Just one last question. - Have you ever been in a
gituation where you felt as if someone made a huge meountain or made
something extremely bigger than what it was? Very like minor

gsituation either at work or at school and it just got blown way out
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of proportion. No one ever had that experience. Yes. In the
back. Ms. Sherilyn.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 117: Uh-huh.

MS. SPELLS: Badge number 117.

- JUROR NUMBER NO. 117: Yes. I have three children and so even
thouqh.they’re adults now it still happens to this day where I'm
the arbitrator between them. I just listen to both sides and I try
to get them to see how the other person’s locking at it and go on.
But unfortunately even they’re 26, 23 and 18, it still happrens.

MS. SPELLS: And so you indicated that yoﬁ have to listen to
both sides and kind of look at the whole picture before you make a
decision? | |

JUROR NUMBER NO. 117: Correct. Because it often has to do
with their boyfriends, husbands, girlfriends, wives.

Ms5. SPELLS: Okay. And, Ms. Sherilyn, I éan sometimes have a
very low voice and I want to make Sure,lhave you been able to hear
me during the course of all of this?

JUROR NUMBER NO. 117: I hear ycu with these.

MS. SPELLS: Okay.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 117: I -- I am -- the Court has provided me
with something, so I can hear you very clearly.

M3. SPELLS: Just wanted to make sure.

JUROR NUMBER NO. 117: Uh-huh.

MS. SPﬁLLS: Has anyone else had a similar experience as Ms.

Sherilyn? Seeing no hands.

1cs
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And Ms. Deborah in seat 13; are vou badge 1337

JUROR NUMBER NO. 133: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: I just wanted to ask you, what does your husband
do? |

JUROR NUMBER NC. 133: He’s president of REIT, a real estate
investment trust. |

MS. SPELLS: Okay. Your Heonor, I'1ll pass for cause.

THE CQURT: Very good. Okay. Now we are going to go to the
next phase of the jury selection process and this is where both
sides get to pick out of this 23 people group the 13 folks that are
going to actually to sit on the jury. Sd they’re going to start
it. They’re going to pass their little list back and forth.

I’m going to start the process after -- I’'m going to
pretend like this whole group is the jury ‘cause I got some
additional information that I need to give to you by ﬁay of
instructions of what you can and what you can’t do. And I'm just
going to go ahead and start, so we don’t waste any Lime. As socn
as they get done, I’11 -- oh yeah, when I —- when I read the names
of the 13 jurors, if you don’t hear your name that means you’re not
among the 13 folks and you’ll be excused.

It’s at that point that we sometimes get a lot of
gobbing, crying when they’re not -- when they’re not seleéted. So
I just want you to kind of hold that part down to a minimum.

So you’re going to -- here’s the information for the

jurors. QOkay. First of all, from here on, you’re going to get
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ancther kadge. The badge you’ve got on now is going to be
exchanged for another badge that JR’s going to give you that'’s
going te identify you as an actual juror sitting on a jury in a
case that’s pending.

The purpose of that is is it’s real important you have
that badge 5n when you’re anywhere close to the building because it
hopefully is -- it identifies you and keeps people from talking to
you. Because this bit about talking to people is real important.
Steer c¢lear of -- now you guys -- are you guys working?

MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Ch okay. All right. It just lcoked that we’re
deing anything,

This part about having vour badge on is important bhecause
we want to separate you away from everybody else especially the
fclks here, the attorneys, the witnesses. So, to further
facilitate that, you will no longer be coming in and out of this
front door. From here on, the juries go out the back door and the
deliberaticon room is right down the hall,

JR’ s going to show you éxactly where you go and you won’t
be -- you won't park where you parked today. There’s a special
place for jurors to park, okay. And he’ll go through all that with
you.

Not only not talkinqlabout the case,Ait’s real important
vou don’t do any kind of an investigation on your own because if --

you can get on the internet these days and loock all kinds of stuff
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up. That is an absolute no, no. You have Lo as a juror, you have
to make your determination as to whether or not the State has
proven their case beyond a reasonable doubt based strictly and
solely upon the evidence that’s presented to you from this witness
chair right there. That testimony plus any exhibits is going to be
the only thing you can base your verdict upon, okay.

Here’s how the case is going t¢ proceed. And I’11 tell
you I’m going to give you an overview c¢f how it works. Counsel
will make opening statements. First the State’s opening statement,
then the Defendant’s opening statement. And in conjunction with
opening statements, closing argumenﬁs and questions te the
witnesses, I need to remind you that the evidence in this case
comes from the feolks that are sitting there-in the witness chair.

Everything that the counsel says whether it’s in opening
statements, clpsing arguments or by way of guestions to the jury
have no evidentiary value_whatsoever. Questions o a juror cnly
have -~ only have meaning as it relates to the answer to that
questicn. So don’t -- don’t let opening statements or closing
arguments or questions by counsel interfere with your thinking
process; that’s evidence, that’s not. All right.

There’s -- there’s twoe kinds of evidence, diresct evidence
and circumstantial evidence. And it is completely and entirely up
to the purview of the jury to give evidence whatever way you deem
it is worth, okay. Direct evidence, so you understand what I'm

talking about, the classic example that’s always used, direct
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evidence is you walk outside and you see it raining, ckay. You
knew that it’s raining ‘cause you saw it. An eyewitness observed
it. You walk outside and you see a wet street. You see a wet

sidewalk, You see water running down the gutter. You can you

presume that it has rained. That i1s called circumstantial

evidence. You didn’t see it, but you saw cther things that gave
you that indication
Circumstantial and direct evidence ig entirely how much

welght you want to give it is a completely and entirely up to the

jury.

I told you this before. Before the jury -- after we have

opening statements, Lhe State’s going to put on their evidence.

They’re going to call their witnesses. They do direct examination.

Then they’ll be cress examination by the defense counsel. Then
they’1ll both have a chance to do redirect or recross and then the

witness is excused. Okay.

State will go through all their witnesses. Then the

defense will decide what they want to do. As they said, they don’t

have any burden to prove. They don’t have to put on evidence.

They may or they may not call witnesses. The Defendant may or may

not testify.

If the Defendant chooses not to testify which he has
every single right to choose and elected to do that, it is --
there’s a specific instruction. We’re going to give you preview.

You are instructed that you cannot even discuss in the course of
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deliberations the fact that the Defendant may have elected and
chosen not to be on a witness stand. You can’t even put -- can’t
even bring it up, so don’t do that. Tf that’s what the Defendant’s
election is, that’s his election and that is absolute
constitutional right.

You are encouraged, and you’ 1l have a nctebook here,
you’ re encouraged to take notes during the course of the evidence
that’s being presented, but not to the point that you exclude the
witness. Pay attention to the witness when the witness is
testifying. There’s plenty of lulls in the testimony and the --
and the trial where you’ll be able to make notations of thingé that
you thought you were important. But don’t do that so that you miss
somebody’s testimony or something the same because it is real
important tc pay attention to the witnesses while they’re
testifying.

You’re the ones that going tc decide what you believe
actually happened. The only way you’re going to be able to do that
is to pay real cleose attention teo the witnesses. All right.
There’s no way to coirect a mistake in that regard. BSc you got to
get it right first time around,.

You must not be influenced by any kind cof sympathy or
prejudice for or against either the State or the Defendant. They
are both entitled to the same, fair and impartial consideration.
That pretty much -- if you can’t hear a witness for heaven’s sake,

tell JR and we’ll stop. We'll stop the proceeding and have them
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'beyond a reasonable doubt.

repeat what they said. Don’t let something like that go -- go on
without making a correction.

L Counsel’s job are to ask the witnesses questions. Okay.
My job is to answer questions of law. We all have a function.
Your job is to listen real careful to the evidence and then

ultimately answer the gquestions if the State proved their case

And your job is not to ask questions. However, even
though it’s not encocuraged, there is a process where you can ask a
question and I’11 tell you how it works. If there’s -- first of
all, the guestion has to be a guestion for the witness. And it has
to be the witness that is on the witness stand. The witness has
left the witness stand., We’re not going to call them back ‘céuse
you thought of a question that you wanted to ask him.

During the course of the -- of the testimony cf a
witness, if you have a question, what you’ll de is you’ll take a.
notebook, you’re going to get a clean sheet of paper, you’ll put
your jurbr number and the question, give it tec JR, he’s going to
bring it up here, give it to me and 1’11 have counsel come up,
we’ll all read it, I°11 listen to any objections they have to the
question. If -- if it’s a proper question to be asked, either I'1l
ask it or I’11 have one of the counsel ask the questions. 3o you
can write it down, but you’re not the one that’s going to be

asking, you know.

If I don’'t ask the question, 1711 tell you at the end of
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the trial why I -- what the cobjection was, what the legal reason
why the gquestion couldn’t be asked. That’s the process that you go

through if you have a question that you want to ask the witnesses,

ckay.

THE MARSHAL: Final selection, Yocur Honor.

THE COURT: Qh, I ran out c¢f stuff to yap about jﬁst ébout the
same time they -- as scon as we -- as soon as we do this then

everybody else that’s not on the list of the 13 jurcors are going to
get excused and we’re going to take a lunch -- we're going to do
what we do really well, take a recess. 2And we're going to take a
break ‘til like 2 o’clock, okay. And then we’ll come back.
Witnesses are all scheduled to start right at 2 o’clock and we’ll
be off and running.

And yeah ancther thing, you go out here and JR will make

sure that you know when -- when ycou come back. When we come back
at like 2 o’clock, the 13 folks will meet -- you have them meet you
over here at the -- JR, do they meet you over here at the double

doors and you bring them back down the hallway over here?

THE MARSHAL: When they deliberate.

THE CQURT: No. I mean, even after lunch and when they come
back in the morning, do you meet them over here and walk them back
into the deliberation room?

THE MARSHAL: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Okay. Yeah, he’ll go through that whole process

with you, but the main point is you’re not going to be out in the
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| front door. I mean, that’s where the witnesses are going to be and

we want to keep you away from there. 5o you’ll come down the
hallway over here at the double doors, he’ll take ycu into the jury
deliberation rocm and they have water, coffee, stuff like that.

For heaven sakes, it doesn’t bother us 1f you bring something in as
long as it makes you comfortable and keeps you alert and awake.

You want water, coffee, let us know. All right.

Did I ever finish telling you the order after the State’s
witnesses, the defense, 1f they have any witnesses, after they’ver
concluded all that, then I‘'m going to read you the instructicns on
the laws that applies to this case? Then you’ll hear closing
arguments from both the State and the defense. Because the State
has the burden'of procf, vyou will hear closing arguments from the
State first, then you’ll hear the defense closing arguments, and
you’ 1l hear the State’s. They get to make the last thing ydu will
hear will be the State making their final closing argument.

And after all that’s been accomplished, I send vou off.
We identify who the alternate juror is and then we take the other
12 people and send them to the deliberation room.

Okay. Néw, since I'm not used to doing it like this,
which one do I read?

THE CLERK: Oh, I read it.
THE COURT: I just wanted to make sure.
THE CLERK: You want me to read it?

THE COURT: Okay. You read it. Yeah. Here you go.
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THE CLERK: I have to number it first.

THE COURT: Okay. You got to make sure &ou have 13 there.

After we -- after we do this and I excused everybody,
you' re barely.going to hear me say another word ‘cause_it sSeems
like I'm the one that’s been doing all this talking. I'm really
going to be pretty much silent as soon as we get this trial kicked
off.

When we named the 13 folks, we’re going to kind cof
reconfigure you so that you’re in the same crder, just absent the
pecple that were excused, so we can tell exactly -- you want to
read them?

THE CLERK: Do you want to look at it?

THE COURT: Oh no.

THE CLERK: Okay.

THE COURT: No. Just read them off.

THE CLERK: Okay. Juror number cne is Sherilyn Nelson.

THE COURT: So when you hear your name, you want to step --
step back up. Sorry about that,

THE CLERK: Juror number twc is Andrea Quimby-Nichels. Juror
number three is Christopher C’Neill. Juror number four is George
Baumer. Juror number five is Timothy Zacovic. Juror number Six is
Philip Merkley. Juror number seven is Deborah Negrel., Juror
number eight is Rasool Barati. Juror number nine is Courtney Anne
Carter. Juror number ten is Darlene Drummond. Juror number eleven

ig Jennifer Marinacci. Juror number twelve is Brian Ribar. And
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Juror number thirteen is Emilio Guerra.

THE CQURT: OCkay. Folks, the rest of you are going to be
excused and sent back down to the Jury Commissioner’s office on the
third fleor. If you didn’t get picked, 1if you didn’t get even
overly gquestioned, I still have to tell you that we couldn’t do
this without every single one of you. I appreciate the -- the
effort that you’ve made and the fact that you answered the call.
So, you guys don’t have to listen to me talk anymore. Go on
downstairs to the Jury Commissioner’s office on the third floor and
just tell them that our selection process is over with and you guys
weren’t in the 13 that were picked. Thank you all, everyone Ifor
your efforts.

and you guys are golng to get sworn in again, There’s a
different cath when you’re actually on the sitting jury, okay. So
first thing we're going to do right now is have everybody stand up,
raise your right hand, Carol’s going to swear you in.

[Clerk swears jury panel]

THE COURT: Very good. All right. Like I said, first thing
we're geing to do is take a recess. Let’s -- is that enough time
if we come back at 2 ofclock or should I say 2:157 |

MS. SPELLS: That should be fine, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Two o'clock?

MS. SPELLS: Yeah. Yes.

TEE COURT: <Ckay. All right. So we're taking a break here

for lunch, whatever from now ‘til Z o’clock. JR will take you
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ocutside and tell you exactly how it works. You're going to go out
from -- are you going to take them out?

THE MARSHAL: I’11 take them cut. Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. This -~ this time you're going to go out
there, but this is the last time you’re going to use the front
door., He’ll tell you Where to meet him and he’ll bring you back in
at 2 o'clock. All right.

Now I have to admonish-you. I did this earlier. Yeah,
you can leave your notebooks right there.

I admonish the membérs of the jury not to converse or
discuss amongst themselves or with anyone else on any subject
connected or related to this trial. Don’t watch, listen or read
any reports or commentaries regarding this trial threough any median
of information which means ;adio, television, newspapers, internet,
any of those sources of information. And den’t form or express any
opinions on any subject connected or related to this trial until
such time as this case has been finally submitted to you. Qkay.

Go have lunch. Relax. See you at 2 o’clock.

[Outside ﬁhe presence of the jufy]

THE COURT: Okay. We’re cutside the presence of the jury.
Anything we need to discuss?

MR. WOOD: Just really quick. I don’t know if Your Honor did
it before, but the whole -- if vou see us in the hallways we’re not
ignoring you, we’re Jjust --

THE COURT: 1711 go through it again. I mean, I didn’t
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explain it like -- but I’11l go through it again. I’1ll make sure
they understand it you’re not being rude by not talking to them.
Anything else?

MS. SPELLS: Ne¢, Your Honor.

MS. SUDANQ: Not from the State, Your Henor.

THFE CQURT: Okay. I mean, hbw many witnesses are we going to
get through today?

MS. SUDANO: I have two lined up for this -- for this
aftérnoon. T can bring a third witness if we think we’re going to
get to them. I just hate to bring him down here and not call him
today.

THE COURT: Well, whatever -~ whatever you want to do. I just
want to make sure we roll this puppy along in a timely fashion.
Let’s not waste their time.

MS. SPELLS: Will we be stopping at 5 today, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yeah. We’ll stop zround between 5 and 5:105,

Okay. All right. See you guys at 2 o’clock.
[Lunch recess taken from 12:4€ p.m. to 2:03 p.m.]
[Outside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Okay. And outside the presence of the jury. The
juries all here in the deliberating room. Anything we need to
address?

MR. WOCD: Yeah. Briefiy, Your Honor. I think there’s just a
housekeeping matter., In the officer reports, when they arrested my

client it said that they checked him and he had active warrants.
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The DA never filed anj bad acts or, you know, motions. So we just
want to make sure that the detectives or the officers don’t --

THE CQURT: Mention that.

MR. WOOD: =-- indicate that sort of thing.

MS. SUDANO: And, Your Honor, I have pre-trialed with the
officers., They know not to mention the fact.that he had or may
have had an outstanding warrant. And I do know he was never booked
on that, so I don’t know what happened with it, but they are aware.
I don’t anticipate any of them will mention the warrant.

THE COURT: 0Okay. All right. Goed.

MR. WOOD: Additicgnally, Your Honor, I just want to let the
Courl know that my client is going to be making an admission as to
a petty larceny, so we have talked te him abeout that. He.does
agree with that, so we are going to be presenting that tc the jury.

THE COURT: How? |

MR, WOOD: Possibly in opening, but definitely in closing and
through jury instructions.

THE COURT: Okay. You mean, he’s not going to get on the
witness stand?

ME. WOOD: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Okay. All right. Okay. And If11 -- I'11
reempghasize for the jurors that if they see you guys downstairs -in
the hallway, blah, blah, blah, that they’re -- you’re nct being
rude; it’s just when they say no contact mean nc conversations.

Goeod afternoon, that’s =-- that’s 1it.
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this again. When you guys are on a break, vou’re in lunch break,

MR. WOOD: Understood.
THE COURT: All right. We’re ready.
[In the presence of the jury]

THE CCURT: Everybody please have a seat. Will the parties
stipulate to the présence of the jury?

MR, WOOD: We will,

MS. SUDANO: Yesg, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Very good. All right. Couple of little

housekeeping matters. T know I said this, but I want to emphasize

you’ re getting in the morning, you’re leaving, it’s entirely
possible that vou’re going to run into some of these pecople. 1
just want to make sure you understand how important it is that you
don’t converse with anybody that has anything to do with this case,
okay.

If you can get scmebody to even say gocd morning, you’re
going to be lucky. They’re not being rude. They’re following the
same_instructions I'm telling you guys, ckay. So if you run into
somebody and they act like they’re ignoring you, they’re not being
rude., They’'re just following the rules, okay.

And I've already kind of foreshadowed how this whole
things works. What you’re going to hear right now is opening
statements which ig a previgw of what each side believes the
evidence is going to be. As scoon as they get done with that, we’re

going to actually start the evidence and we should have several
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witnesses done before we break tonight, okay.
Counsgel, are you ready?

M5. SUDANO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MS. SUDANO: May I mcve about, Your Honor?

TEE COURT: Sure.

MS. SUDANO: Thank you.

[CPENING STATEMENT BY THE STATE]
BY MS, SUDANO:

T.adies and gentlemen, this isn’t a particularly complicated
case, but it’s still an important one. You're going to hear that
on July 31°° of 2015 approximately 2:50 in the morning, Evangelia
Mantikas was sitting at a bus step near Boulder Highway and
Plamingo. And as she was sitting there, she was approcached by the
Defendant in this case, Gabriel Ibarra. He saw her texting and
using her phone. He asked if he could use it to make a phone call.

Now you’re alsc going to hear and the evidence is going
to show, ladies and gentiemen, that the Defendant didn’t actually
want to make a phone call. You see, Evangelia typed in the number
for him as the Defendant asking her guestions about what type of
phone it was that she had. A2And then as scon as the Defendant had
the phone, within a matter of seconds, he stood up and he started
to walk away.

Now Evangelia attempted to feollow the Defendant, but he

tock a couple of steps, looked behind him and saw that Evangelia
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was following him, and he began to run. S$So Evangelia chased him,
put she wasn’t able to catch up with him, wasn’t able to get her
prhone back from this man who had just been borrowing it for the
purposes of making a phone call,

So instead what Evangelia did was she tracked down a
passerby. She called the police and she call her friend, Bri. Bri
started using an iPhone app t¢ track my iPhone app. She was able
to give the police updated information about where the phone was
moving. And based on that information, the police -- you’re going
to hear from several cofficers in this case -- were able to track
the phone, Evangelia’s iPhone.

They eventually track it to the area cf a McDonald’s on
Nellis Boulevard, you’re going to hear from Officer Kunz and
Officer Giese, the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, that
they go that McDonald’s as they’'re getting this updated information
from Bri and Evangelia that that’s maybe where the phong is. They
find a car. And as the car starts to move, the iPhone starts to
move.

And so they try to conduct a stop on this car, but before
they were able to do so, somebody gets out and goes into the Casis
Meadows Apartment complex. So Officer Kunz is eventually able to
conduct a stop on that car finds out that ncobody in the car matches
fhe suspect that Evangelia gave to police. Nobody matches that
information. There’s alse no iPhone in the car or an iPhone that

belongs tc Evangelia in the car.
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So they go back to that Oasis Meadows Apartment complex.
You’ re going to hear again from Officer Kunz and Officer Giese that
they saw the Defendant in that complex. And they called out to the
Defendant and asked to speak to him, but he momentarily went around
the corner and then came back.

You’re going to hear from Officer Giese that after they
stopped the Defendant and talked him, he walked over to that area
where the Defendant was momentarily out cf view, just four or five
feet away from that area in the bushes they found Evangelia’s
cellphone.

Now, conce they found that cellphone, they returned it to
Evaqgelia and they had Evangelia come down tc the scene and
identify the Defendant. She pointed out the Defendant and yes
again that’s the man who took my iPhone from me, took it out of my
hand, pretended to make a phone call and then ran away with it.

Ladies and gentlemen, as I already told you, this isn’t a
particularly complicated case. But at the end of this trial, the
State’s going to stand back before you and ask that you find the
Defendant, Gabriel Ibarra, guilty of larceny from a perscn., Thank
you.

THE COURT: Thank vou, counsel. Who is going to -- you are,
ckay.

MS, SPELLS: I am, Your Honor. Permission to move about?

THE CQURT: Absolutely.

MS., SPELLS: Thank you.
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[OPENING STATEMENTS BY THE DEFENDANT]
BY MS. SPELLS:

There are books of which the backs and cover are by far the
best parts. That's a quote from Charles Dickens out of his famous
book Cliver Twist.

Now you’re probably thinking what does Oliver Twist have
to do with this case? Well, a few things. Very similar to the
gquote that I just recited before you. The beginning and the end of
this case is probably going to be the most interesting. Now why is
that? That’s because the State and the defense agree on most of
the facts.

This case is very simple. On July 31%%, 2015, Ms.
Evangelia Mantikas was sitting at a bus stop. Sitting next to her
at the bus stop was my client, Mr. ibarra. Ms. Mantikas was
texting on her cellphone and Mr. Ibarra asked to use the phone.

Ms. Mantikas finished texting. She dialed a phone number and she
voluntarily handed Mr. lbarra that cellphone. He began tc speak on
the phone, got up, started to ﬁalk away. Ms. Mantikas also got up.
And she followed Mr, ibarra. And then Mr. lbarra began to run,

This whole incident was not a few seconds, but actually
took a number of minutes; a minimum of two to three minutes. When
Mr. Ibarra ran, he took the phone with him.

Now, unlike the story of Oliver Twist, we're not goilng to
have any interesting stories of any villains like Fagin. You’'re

not going to hear about any complicated schemes of criminal
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deception. We won’t. get to explore the tricks of the trade cf pick
pocketing like tﬁe movie Focus that starred Will Smith. And
unfortunately for these of you who indicated that you like CST and
all of those other types of shows, it's not going to be any fun
science c¢f forensic data.

What the evidence will show and what Ms. Evangelia
Mantikas will tell vyou was that she wasn’t threatened, she wasn’t
scared. She voluntarily handed the phone over to Mr. Gabriel
Ibarra. The evidence will show that there was never anything taken
from Ms. Mantikas’ person.

So the obvious guestion becomes why are you here? If the
State and the defense agree on that much, what is your purpose?

Why are you here? The defense contends that you are here because
the State overcharged this case. We are very confident that end of
hearing all cf the evidence, you will find that Mr. Ibarra is not
guilty of the crime charged, larceny from fhe person,

We ask instead that after considering all of the evidence
before you, you find Mr. Ibarra guilty of the actiong that he
committed on petty larceny. Thank you.

THE CQURT: Thank you, counsel. State, will you call your
first witness?

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, can we actually approaéh on something
please?

THE CQURT: Sure.

[Bench Conference commenced at 2:20 p.m.]
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MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, I'm a little concerned
[indecipherable] we haven’t settled a jury instructions. We
haven’t addressed whether or not there’s a lesser included of
larceny from the person that’s going to be a petty larceny in this
particular case. There’s some concerns with the - the argument
that the State’s overcharging. So I just wanted to address all of
those things right now before we get too far into this trial ‘cause
like T said we haven’t settled instructions and how this juries
been told that they’re going tc get a lesser included on larceny or
petty larceny.

THE COURT: I think we’re going teo be entitled teo pursue an
instruction that says [indecipherable] committed the offense of
petty larceny. I don’t know that it can be under a lesser
included., I think he’s just entitled to -- that’s their theory of
the case that the crime that was committed was a petty larceny.

Not going to [indecipherable] to a lesser included [indecipherable]

MR. WOOD: They actually contain all of the same elements. So
it actually is listed and [indecipherable] in the stock, gquote on
quote, stoék instructions as a lesser included. And those are
written by predominantly a DA team along with other individuals.

THE COURT: [indecipherable] I think you’re going to be
[indecipherable] to have a petty larceny charge instruction. We’re
not going to go through all the rigmarcle on making a lesser

included. We’re just going to -- unless you can show me some law
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because otherwise I think the way it’s-going to work is you’re just

going to [indecipherable] your instruction on [indecipherable].
We’ll discuss it further.

MS. SUDANC: Okay.

THE CQURT: OQkay.

MS. SUDANO: I just wanted to raise that. Thank you, Your
Heonor.

[Bench Conference concluded at 2:22 p.m.]

THE COURT: Call vour first witness.

MS. SUDANO: State calls Evangelia Mantikas please.

THE MARSHAL: Remain standing, raise yvour right and face the
Clerk.

EVANGELIA MANTIKAS

having been callied as a witness and being first duly sworn,
testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Please be ;eated and then state and spell your
name for the record.

THE COURT: Just scoot right up there close to that

microphone. There you go. All right., State your full name. And

for the record, spell both the first and last name, okay.

THEE WITNESS: Evangelia Mantikas, E-V-A-N-G-E-L-I-A, M-A-N-T-

T-K-A-S.
MS. SUDANQ: Thank you, Your Honor,

DIRECT EXAMINATICN

BY MS. SUDANO:
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Q:
Al

O

Ma’am, may I call you Evangelia?
Yes,

Now, Ewvangelia, I want to draw your attention to July 3

of 2015 approximately 2 in the morning; do you recall where you

were?

bus?

you?

A:

? © = &

o

Yes.

Where were you?

At the bus stop located on Boulder Highway and Flamingo.
Is that here.in Clark County, Nevada?

Yes.

What were you doing at that bus stop?

Just waiting for the bus to get home.

Where were you coming from?

Down Flamingo.

Now, what were you doing while vou were waiting for the

Texting.
What kind of phone were you fexting on?
IPhone 58.

Now, were there any other people at the bus stop near

Yes.
How many people were there?
I'd say arcund three to four.

Were they close to you or far away?
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A
side.

Q:

Only one was closest to me. -The rest were on the other

When you say the other side, about hew far away were

those other people?

A: Maybe four or five seats away. There’s dividers in the
bus stop.

Q: You said there was one person that was closé.to you?

i Yeah.

Q: Where was that perscn?

A: Just a few seats away from me.

Q: How long had yvou been waiting for the bus?

A: When I got there, maybe 20 minuies.

Q: New at some peint as you were waiting for the bus, did

somebody else come up?

A: Yes,

O: Do you see that person here in the ccurtroom today?

A Yes.

o Could vou please point to that person and identify an
article of clothing that he or she is wearing today?

A A blue shirt, button up. I think.

MS. SUDANO: And may the record reflect identification of the

Defendant?

THE COURT: Yes. Yes, the record so shall.

BY MS.

Q:

SUDANO:

How ig that you first came into contact with the
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Defendant at that bus stop?
A: He came around the corner and kind of sat there a little
bit looking around and then he asked if he could borrow my phone.
Q: Where was your phone when the Defendant first came around
the corner?

A Kind of like I was holding it like this, just sitting on

my lap.
Q: And so you were holding it out in front of you?
A: Yeah.
Q: Were you texting?
Az Yeah. |
Q: Where was the Defendant when he asked if he could borrow

your phcne?

Az Sitting next to me.

Q: Was he -~ where was he next to you?

A To my right like right -- just -- yeah.

Q: Was he in the seat immediately next to you or were there

some seats between the twe ¢f you?

Az Immediately next to me.

Q And that was o your right side?

A Yes.

0 Did you agree that the Defendant could use your phone?
A Yes,

Q: How did that conversation go?

A HBe asked if he could borrow it and I said yes. 2and I
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is that, where do you live, that’s -- Jjust basic questions, but it

told him that I would type the number in for him. And I asked what
the nuﬁber was and I typed it first and then I really didn’t hear
the last four.

Q: When you say you didn’t hear the last four, does that
mean you didn’t hear the entire phone number?

A: Yes.

Q: So what if anything happened after you didn’t hear the
phone number fully?

A We started talking and I just went back to texting. And
then he reminded me oh, can I use your phone and I said yes. And I
asked for the number again and I heard it and I typed it in fully.

Q: Now, vou said that the two of you were talking and you
were texting. What were you and the Defendant talking about?

L He asked me simple guestions like oh, what kind of phone

wasn’t that long.

Q: When you -~ did you tell him what kind of phone it was?
A: Yes.

Q: You told him if was the iPhone 537

Al Yes.

Q: Did you give him any additional information about where

you lived or any of those other questions he asked?
A Like exactly where I lived?
Q: What did you tell him when he asked you that?

A: I wasn’t from here.
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O: Where did you tell him you were from?

iy California.

Q: Why didryou do that?

A I don't like telling people where I live if I don’t know
them,

Qe Now, from the time you first saw the Defendant until you
typed in the entire phone number that he gave to you, about how
long was that?

i Like how long were we talking before?

Q: Yes. |

A: Three to five minutes. No more than that.

Q: Now, when you fully typed in the phone number the
Defendant gave to you, what happened at that point?

A: I handed the phone over to him and since he was to my
right, he grabbed it with his left hand and then switched it to his
right, so it was further away from me,

O So it was on the side initially that'was closest to you
and then he switched it into his left hand so it was acrosé his
body from you; is that fair?

A Well, his right hand. Like he grabbed it with his left,
switched it to his right.

Q: S50 it was across his body from you?

A Yeah.

Q: Okay. And approximately how long did he have the phone

in his right hand, so the side that was closest to you?
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i If anything, a second. He immediately changed it to his
other hand.

Q: What if anything happened after he changed the phone to
the other hand?

D He stood up and started walking away.

Q: and how long after he switched the hand that the phone
was in did that occur that he got up and walked away?

A Tt was right away as he was switching it getting up. As
soon as it touched his ear, he just stood up and started walking.

Q: Were those two things happening pretty much at the same
time?

A: Pretty much.

Q: What if anything did you do when you saw the Defendant
start to get up with your phone?

Ay I got up with him.

Qs Who -- were you walking next to him in front of him,
behind him?

A Behind him.

Q: What if anything did the Défendant do at that point?

A: When he saw me coming with him, he started running.

Q: Now, about how many steps did the Defendant take before

he started running?

A Three to four maybe.
Q: How many steps did you take before the Defendant started
running?
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A Two to three.

Q: What happened after the Defendant started running?

A T ran after him.

Q: Where did he run?

A into kind of the middle of the suites apartments.

Q3 Are those located in that same area of Boulder Highway

and Flamingo?

A: Yes.

Q: Is that here in Clark County, Nevada?

A: Yes.

Q: Were you able to follow the Defendant into the suites?
A: For a short time, yeah.

Q: What happened after you followed him into the suites?
a: When we ran to the middle, he turned and I turned with

him and I was still able to see him. But once he turned again, I

was no longer able to catch up to him or see him at all.

able

Qs and did he lose you in the apartment complex?
Al Yes.
Q: Now, while the Defendant was sitting with you, was he

to complete that phone call?

A Like speak to --
Q: Yeah. Did he talk to anybody on the other end?
A No.

MS. SPELLS: Objection, Your Honor, Speculation.

TEE COURT: I think you can -- she can ask if he was able to
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hear him talking. Did you hear him talking?

THE WITNESS: He mumbled something, but.it wasn’t to anyone on
the phone.

THE COURT: Okay.
BY MS. SUDANC:

Q: What makes you sgay that wasn’t tb anybody on the phone?

A: I know it wasn’t the right -- like I know it didn’t ring
yet. I know how long it takes for my phone to get to a call. And
he just mumbled something like he was speaking to me kind of. Like
he was trying to say a reason to get up and walk away.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, I'm going to object again for
speculation --

THE COURT: That’s --

MS. SPELLS: -- and ask if that --

THE COURT: -- that’s prchably --
MS. SPELLS: -- line of guesticning bhe stricken.
THE COURT: -- that’s probably the case. Just move on.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: Now, I just want tc clarify with you, Evangelia; you
never heard the Defendant speaking to anybedy on the phone?

A No.

Q: And the entire time from the time you dial your phone and
you hand it to the Defendant until he starts walking away, how long
was that?

A: T don't know. Can you please —-
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Q: So from the time -- you initially you dial the phone
number and hand the phone to the Defendant. And then he gets up
and starts to walk away. How long between those two things?

A: I want to say no more than five minutes. It wasn’t that
long.

Q: And so I want to clarify, it was five minutes from the
time that you handed him his phone until he got up and walked away
¢r the entire interaction that you had with the Defendant was five
minutes?

A: By the time I dialed it and handed it to him and he got
up. The whple interaction was maybe less than 190 minutes, no more.

Q: And so how long was the Defendant sitting next to you
holding youf phone before he got up and walked away?

A A few seconds.

0: And so wh?n vou’ re saying that there was something that
took five minutes, can you explain for the ladies and géntlemen of
the jury what it was that took five minutes? I'm sorry. You said
that the interaction from when he haa the phone until he got up and
walked away was five minutes. Can you explain that a little bit
more?

A From when he asked me to dial the number and T didn’t
hear it, so I kind of ignored it. Then when he asked again, and I
typed it in and handed it to him. That whole précess kxind of took

five minutes.

Q: Okay. S0 that was the five minutes. 2&nd then from the

138

ROQUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibarra
C-15-308774-1

=@y



10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

time vou actually, physically hand.him the phone ‘til he gets --
Az That was just a few seconds.
Q: Qkay. So when he gets up and walks away that was just z
few seconds?
A Yes.

Q: Did the Defendant say anything else to you other than the

||mumbling when he got up and started to walk away?

Al No.
Q: Did he say anything to you after he started te run?
A No.

Qs What did you do after you lost the Defendant inside the
apartment complex?

A I came across a couple that was standing outside their
apartment room and I asked them for help.

Q: Specifieally, what did you ask them to do?

i I asked if they’ve seen someone running and they said
yes. And I asked if they could help me find him and we all kind of
split up, but I was with fhe lady that was there.

Q: Now what did you do with the lady?

A I realized that I left my stuff at the bus stop, sc I
asked if she could come with me to pick up my stuff.

Q: Did you two actually go back to the bus stop?

Al Yes.

Q: What 1f anything did you do conce you got back to the bus
stop?
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Az I got my stuff and I was kind of just freaked out. So
was just talking about the whole situation and then asked if I
could borrow her phone to make a phone call.

Q: Now who did you call?

A irst I called I called my girlfriend, Brianna.

Q: Is that Brianna Roche?

A Yes.

Q- Now did vyou call anvbody after you called Brianna?
A Yes.

Q: Who did vyou call after that?

A: The police.

O Now when vou called the police did vou relate what had
happened tc you?

A Yes.

Q: Were you able to provide a description of the man who
took your phone? |

A: Not a goéd valid one, but yes.

Q: What did yvou tell them -- what did you tell them abcut
the individual who took your phone?

A They asked what color or race he was and I gave an
invalid one thinking it was what I told them.

Q: What did you tell them?

A I said he was African American.

Q: Now did you tell them anything else about his, maybe his

age, his height, his race cor his weight; anything like that?
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A I told them he was maybe five, five or five, six.

really knowing. And I said mavbe in his 30’s.

Q: Okay. Did you provide them with any information about

his clothing?
A: Yes.

Q: What did you tell them about his clothing?

A I beliéve I told them he was wearing blue shorts or a

wife beater.

Q: Now were you able to give them any description about his

hair?
A Yes.
Q: What did you tell them about his hair?
A He was bald.

Q: Now what 1f anything happened after you called the

police?

A: Me and the couple I found that were outside walked over
to Walgreens that was located in the same parking lot as the
zpartments.,

Q: What if anything happened at the Walgreens?

A First we were asking for pens and stuff to right down
like where he was ‘cause we did -- we were able to track down the

phene. Bri was using the track my iPhone app and she was able to

give me an address and we wrote it down. And then asked to borrow

gsomzone else’s phone, I

Qs Now you said that Bri was using the track my iPheone app;
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can you just generally explain for the ladies and gentlemen of the
jury what that app is?
At The app if ydu have an iPhone 1if you know your iCloud log

in, the password and username, you’re able to track down everywhere

' the phone is going.

Q: So is that just using basically the GPS on the iPhone?

A Basically, but it’s just only an iPhone thing. Meaning
if you took a Galaxy and got the app, it wouldn’t work as well.
The iPhone will tell you where ever it is, what building it is,
where they’re at, how fast they’re going if they’re on foot or in a
vehicle.

Q. 2nd that’s just you plugging in your information specific

to your phone number and your phone and it gives you that

information?

A: Yes. But your iCloud and all that has to be con in order
to do that.

Q: Okay. Now, at some point did you come into contact with

the police that night?

A Yes.

Q: How did that happen?

A T called them twice and they were not responding saying a
lot of things were going on. And I had seen a cop at a stop light
located on Flaminge and Boulder Highway and I kind of ran to him.
4is window was down and I asked for help if he can come in the

driveway and help me,.
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Q: Did that officer pull over and help you?

A:_ Yes.

Q: Now, what happens once that officer’s pulled over and
helping you?

A I told him everything that went on about him taking my
phone and then another policeman pulls up. And I was just talking
to both of them and they told me --

MS. SPELLS: Objection. Hearsay.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MS. SUDANOC:

Q: I don’t want to talk specifically about anything that the
cfficers tolid you. I just want to talk about what you did and what
you were involved with. So, at some pcint after the officer show
up and -- and help you in the Walgreen’s parking lot, do you go to
a different location?

A Eventually yes.

Q: Where did you go?

A: It was after they had told me they found him. We went to

MS. SPELLS: Objection, Your Honor.
BY MS, SUDANQO:

Q: Sc I don’t want you to talk about anything that the
cfficer said. I just want you to talk about where you went.
A The Oasis apartments.

Q- Who did vou go to the Oasis apartments with?
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Az Cne of the officers.

Q: And how did you get over to that apartment complex?
A: They drove me over there in their car.

Q: One of the police officers drove you?

A Yes,

Q: Now, do you recall where that apartment complex was?

Az Nellis and Vegas Valley.

Q: Now what happened after you drove into the complex with

that officer?

i He was speaking to me, but we drove in a little behind

the other policeman that was with us.

Q: And when you say he, are you referring to the cofficer

that drove vyou over there?

A Yes.

[OH Okay. And you followed another officer into the complex?
A: Yes.

Q: What happened once you got intc the complex?

A; We were backed up and he was telling me everything that

was -—

MS. SPELLS: Objection, Your Honor,

THE CQURT: ©Okay. Objecting to as you repeating what somebody

else said that you out of court., Sc you took that part
[indecipherable] he said -- just say you had a conversatiocn.
THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank you., Sorry.

BY MS. SUDANO:
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Q:

So you get into the complex with the officer, and then

what happens next?

A
after we
not ~-~ 1
identify

(O
not, who

At

a:
into the
been the

A

QO

Bt

Q:

He pulls up behind the other cfficer away from them and
had a conversation and I had te fill out a report. I'm
don’t really remember what it’s called. And then I had
if it was him or not.

And when you say you had to identify if it was him or
are you talking about?

The guy that took my phone.

And so would it be fair to say that the officer drove y
complex and showed you somebody that may or may not have
person who took your phone?

Yes.

Were you able to look at that person?

Yes,

Were you able to determine whether or net that was the

person that tock your phone?

A
Q:
A

Q:

Yes.
And was it that person?
Yes.

And is it the same Defendant that you see here in the

courtroom today?

A:

Q:

A

Yes, Yes.
Is that a yes?

Sorry.
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Q: Now, what if anything did you do after you identified the
Defendant for the officers?

A Sorry. I don’t understand.

Q: Let’s switch, We’ll ask you a different.question. S0
the seccnd time you saw the Defehdant that, was he wearing the same
clothing that he had been wearing previously?

A Yes.

Q: And what was that clothing again?

A From what I remember I believe T got it wrong when I

identified him the first time, but he was still wearing a wife

Leater.
Q: Do you recall anything about his pants?
A I don't remember.
Q Now, at some point did you get your phone back?
A: Yes.
Q: And where were you when you got your phone back?
A: I was in the car with my brother at that pocint and they

called me over saying I can go get my phone that was located on one

of the policeman’s car.
Q: Was that still in the apartment complex or had you gone

to a different location?

A Same apartment complex.
Q: Now when you got your phone back, approximately what time
was that?
A Six in the morning.
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1 Q: Was therxe anything unusual about your phone when you got

- 2 ||it back?
] 3 MS., SPELL3: Objecticn, Your Honor. May we approach?
4 THE CCURT: Sure.
T 5 [Bench Conference commenced at 2:43 p.m.]
4] MS. SPELLS: Well, my concern 1s that T don’t know where the

7 Il State was going, but if there was going to be ahy conversation

8 ||about the phone being dirty and any type of [indecipherable] or
8 [lenything like that because that wasn’t tested. So I didn’t that
— 10 ||they were going to be bringing up --

11 THE COURT: Do you have any idea what she’s going to say

12 || [indecipherable] --

13 MS. SUDANO: She’s going to say -~ she’s going to say the

14 ||number was [indecipherable] no longer her number in the phone.

15 THE COURT: Is that what she’s going tc say?
16 M5, SUDANO: Uh-huh.
17 THE COURT: And what’s wrong with that?
—f - 18 M3. SPELLS: That’s fine. I thought they were going into the

19 || {indecipherable] --

20 MS. SUDANQO: No.
j 21 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. All right. Counsel, careful.
i
1 22 MS. SUDANO: Ckay.
|
g 23 THE COURT: Don’t {[indecipherable] --
24 MS, SUDANO: I’1l be careful.
25 [Bench Conference concluded at 2:43 p.m.]
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BY MS. SUDANO:

Q3 Now, Evangelia, you said that you got your phone back
that morning, correct? 7

A Yes.

Q: Now, did you try to make phone calls or text on your

phone that morning?

At Yes.

Q: After you got it back from the police?

A Yes.

Q: Were vou able to do that?

Az Yes and no.

O} What do you mean by yes and no?

A: Well, I have iMessage connected on my phone and it was

not turning on, And I wasn’t able to text Brianna, the only person
I was texting. And I -=- but I did -- I was able tc make a phone
call to my brether that was with me.

Q: Where was your brother when you made the phone call to

him that morning?

o On the driver’s seat in the car when we were driving
home? |

Q: Were vou sitting right next to each other?

A fes.

Q: Now, did vou notice anything unusual when you made that

phone call to your brother?

Az It wasn't my phone number,
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Q: When you say it wasn’t your phone number, what do you

mean by theat?

At When I called him and the caller ID showed up, it was a

different number and I actually called twice to make sure it was

not my number,

i1t was a different number.

Q: Is there anything significant about that number that

showed upon your phone?

A Can
Q: Had
Az No.

him.,

you rephrase that please?
vou seen that number before?

Oh yes. Sorry. That’s the number I typed in for

Q: And when you say that’s the number you typed in for him,

who are ycu referring to?

A The

Q: So,

guy that took my phone.

I just want tc make sure that we got this all clear.

So when you get your phone back at 6 a.m. cn the morning of the 315"

of July, you called your brother; is that right?

A Yes.
Q: And

was no longer

A Yes.
- Qs And
Az Yes.
Q: And

Defendant; is

the number that showed up on the caller ID you saw

your phone number?

it was a different number, right?

that was the same number that you had called for the

that correct?
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A Yes,

Q: Okay. ©Now -- Your Honor, may I approach the Clerk?

THE COURT: Sure,

MS. SUDANC: May I approach the witness, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

BY MsS. SUDANO:

Q: Evangelia, I’m approaching vou with proposed Exhibits 9
and 10. Can you go ahead and review those for me? Db you
recognize what’s depicted in State’s proposed Exhibits 9 and 107

Az Yes.

Q: And just generally what’s in State’s proposed Exhibit 972

A Yes.

Q: What is that?

A The ‘back of my iPhone,

Q: And now State’s proposed Exhibit 10; what’s depicted

A The iPhcone case I had bought.

QO Now, are those a fair and accurate description -- fair
and accurate -- accurate representation of how your phone looked on
July 31%° of 20157

A Before it got taken or after I had gotten it back?

Q: After you got it back.

A It looked like that, but there’s a few damages.
(o Ckay. But generally fair and accurate?
A: Yeah. Yes.
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MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, at this time the State would move for

the admissicn of proposed Exhibits 9 and 10.

THE COURT: Any objections?

MS. SPELLS: No, Your Hecnor.

THE COURT: Nine and ten are admitted.

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, may I have permission to publish
proposed 9 and 107

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Or 9 and 10 at this peint.

[State’s Exhibits 9 and 10 acdmitted]

BY MS5. SUDANO:

Q: Evangelia, I’m showing you there State’s Exhikit 9 and is

that the back of your iPhone on July 31%F of 20152

A Yes.,

O And now I'm showing yvou Exhibit 10 here; is that the
cover that was on your iPhone on July 31%% of 201572

A Yes.

Q: Now were you able to give that description ¢f the iPhone

or your cover to police during this case?

A: Yes.

0: . Now I want to jump back to -- you said that you made a
911 call in this case; is that correct?

A: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: And, Your Honor, at this time I would move Ifor

the admission of State’s proposed Exhibit number 1. We talked
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about this previously. I don’t believe there’s going to be an
objection.

MR. WOOD: That’sg correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You guys, no objection? State’s 1 is admitted.

M§5. SUDANO: And may I have permission to publish that for the
Jjury?

THE COURT: Yes.

[State’s Exhibit 1 admitted]
BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: Evangelia, now I’'m geing to play the -- State’s Exhibit 1
here.

[Playing State’s Exhibit 1]

Q: I just want to follow up on a couple of things with you
from that call. Now you’re talking it sounds like to scmebody else
who'’ s there; who were you talking to?

A The couple that I had found in the apartments.

Q: Now, you also were talking about how you gave the phone
to the Defendant to make a phone call; is that right?

At Yes.

Q: Now, did the Defendant have your permission to have the
phone permanently?

A No.

Q: Did he have permission to have your phone to do anything
other than make a phone call?

At No.
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phone, would you have given it to him?

A

M3 .

THE COURT: Cross.

MS.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q:
A:
Q1
bus stop?
A

Q:

>

o0 P 0O

L&)

ot

SUDANO: Your Honor, at this time no further guestions.

SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you,

Now had you known that he was going to take off with vyour

No.

CROSS EXAMINATION

Good afternoon, Ms. Mantikas.
Good afternoon.

So early in the morning on July 31°% you’re sitting at the

Yes.

You’ re texting on your phone?
Yes.

Your phene is out?

Yes.

It’s in your hands?

Yes.

And it’s not in your purse at this time?
No.

Not clipped to a phone clip?
No.

It’s not clipped on your belt?

No.
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Az

Q-
the phone

Az

Q:

=20

It’s not in an arm wristband?

No.

It’s not affixed to your body, right?
No.

And Gabriel asked to use your phone?
Yés.

And you respond yes?

Yes.

So you finished texting?

Finished, but kind of just stopped.
Okay. You stopped texting?

Yes. |

and you put in a number for him?

Yes.

Do you recall that number by heart?

No.

Did you write the number down somewhere?
Like physically write it down, né.

Yes. WNo. A&After you dialed the phpne number, you hand
to Gabriel?

Yes.

And he takes the phone in his left hand?
Yes.

He switches it to his .right hand?

Yes.
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C: The phone is not on speaker phone at that peoint?
A No.

Q: He’s holding the phone up his ears?

Ay Yes,

Q: And he says something?

Al Yes.

Q: You couldn’t make out what he said?

A Not exactly, no.

Q: At this point, Gabriel starts -- he stands up?
A Yes.

Q: And he initially begins to walk away?

Az Yes.

(O You follow him at this point?

A Yes.

Q: And then he begins to run?

i Yes.

Q: Now this incident takes not more than ten minutes?

i Between just us at the bus stop or the entire chase?

Q: The entire event from when Mr. Ibarra starts speaking to

you to when yvou begin running.

Az Yes.

Qe As the phone was in Gabriel’s hand, you weren’t touching
the phone?

Az No.

Q: You weren’t touching hisg hands?
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A No.

Q: When Gabriel asked to use the phone, he didn’t shout at

you?
A No.
Q: He didn’t threaten you?
A: No.
Q: Didn’t demand the phone?
A No.
Q: He didn’t push or shove you anyway?
A No.
Q: And he never used the weapon?
A No.
oF He also didn’t snatch the phone from you?
A, No.
Q: So you handed it over to him voluntarily?
A, Yes.
C You weren’t afraid? When he asked to borrow the phone,

you weren’'t afraid?
i I was getting a little nervous when anyone asks for it,

but not like afraid.

Q: Okay. That’s fair. Because cbviously he’s a stranger,
right?
A Yes.
Q: Now,‘you.indicated that vou had an iPhone?
A Yes.
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Q:
A
Q:
A
Q:

Ay

Qs
A
Q:
A

Q:
Az

O:

This is an iPhone 5837

Yes,

And are you familiar with iPhcnes?
Yeah.

Scmewhat?

Yeah.

You’re aware that there’s currently a iPhone 67
Yes.

iPhbne 6 Plus?

Yes.

There’s an iPhone 687

Yes.

So, are you aware that the iPhone 55 came out in

September, approximately 20137

A
Q:
Az
Q:
recall?
A

Qs

I wasn’'t aware of the exact date, but —--
Came out a few years ago?
Yeah.

And when did you purchase this phone? What year do you

2015 this year.

You’d have the phone for at least a few months prior to

this incident?

A

o

Yes.
So the phone wasn’t brand new?

I thought it was. They had told me that they gave me a
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used phone and still charged me for the amount that I got it for.

Qs But it was in good shape?

A: Yeah.

Q: And it was in good working condition?

A Yes,

Q: Did it have a few scratches?

A No.

Q: When you purchased the phone, you purchased it as part of

a contract?

A Yes.

Q: I want to talk to you just a little bit about while you
were at this bus stop. You had a purse that evening?

A: A backpack.

o A backpack?

A: Yeah.

Q And your backpack was at the bus stop?

A Yes.
Q: Where was it at the bus stop?
A On the ground next to me.

Q: On the ground.

At Yeah;

O And so when you begin to get up and walk and follow
Gabriel, vyour backpack was left there?

A Yes.

Q: And when you begin te run after Gabriel, your backpack
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was still there?

A Yes.

03 You knew that your backpack was still there?

A Yes,

Qs and you were concerned about your backpack being still
there?

A: Yes.

Q: You’re alsc concerned about your phone?

A:. Yes,

Q: You weren’t counting the amount of steps you took before

you started running?

Az No.
Q: You weren’t looking at youi watch to gage how much time
it was?

Az No, I didn’t have a watch.
Q: And this couple that you asked for help, were they also

at the bus stop with you?

Al No.

Q: They were only inside the suites?

A: Yes.

.Q: To your knowledge, had they ever had an opportunity to

see Gabriel?
A Yes.
Q: The State talked to you a lot about the description that

you gave the officers about the person who took your phone. And
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yvou said a couple of times that you gave a bad description.

A Yes.

Q: You got it wrong. You said you got the clothing wrong,
right?

A: I remember the wife beater, but I didn’t really remember

the shorts, I don't reélly look at people’s clothing especially
with something that happened like that. Everything just completely
blew out of mind.

Q: ‘Sure. And you also indicated that you thought you got

his ethnicity wrong.

Az Yes.

o and you were talking with Gabriel, right?

A Yes,

oF For a few minutes?

A Yes.

Q: I want to talk to you just briefly about this iPhone and

the iPhone app tiacker. Prior to July 31°%, 2015 you had not used
the iPhone app tracker?

A: Me, no.

Q: No. You weren’t aware that you could track where.your
phone was going?

A I was aware you can. I just didn’t know how to do it.

Q: You didn’t know how to do it, okay. And when you called
the police you said I hope that the police can track it, right?

A: Yes. Just in case the track my iPhone that my girlfriend
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was deing did not work.

0 50 you weren’t the person conducting the track my iPhone?
A No.
0 And you weren’t right next to your girlfriend as this was

being conducted?

A No.

Q: And you indicated that your iCloud has to be on?

A Yes.

Q: How are you aware of that? Did somecne let you know that

you have to have your iCloud on at the time?

A When I -- I guess when connect toc it --
Q: Uh-huh.
A: -- it asked if ~-- or -- it says something along the lines

to where if it is on and it lets you know if it is on, so Brianna
was able to tell me if it was on or not otherwise it wouldn’t track
the phcne.

Q: This is information that you’re getting from the track my

iPhone site, right?

Ar .Yes.
Q: Ckay. Do you have any type of training in electronics?
A No.

Q: Any type of training in like cellphones specifically?
A

No.
Q. So the information when you were speaking about how the
iPhone -- track my iPhone works and all that; this is information
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that you got from speaking with you girlfriend, is that fair to
say?
A:  Yes. I had already known about the app, but never too

much about it ‘cause I honestly didn’t think I’d need to use it.

Q: So vou had a general knowledge of the act?

A Yes.

o But you didn’t know the specifics of the application?
Al Yes.

Q: You didn’t know exactly how it worked. There was some

mentioned earlier about Samsung phones and things like that.
You’ re not like -- you don’t do any research or testing to figure
out how Androids work best versus iPhones, right?

Az I had an Android before I got the iPhone.

Q: And it just didn’t have the track my iPhone app?

Al Yes. The lady I was with tried getting it. It just was
not wbrking at all. 3She’s the one that suggested to --

Q: Use the track my iPhone app?

A Yes. She asked me if my girlfriend had had that phone --
the same phone.

Q: So what you’'re saying to clarify is basically someone
else needed to have an iPhone to assist you in tracking your
iPhone?

A: Yes.

Q: And that the models like Android to iPhone wouldn’t work

together?
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Az Yos.

Q- Not the capabilities of what an Andrcid phone is or the
capabilities of what an Android phone can do?

A Yes.

Q: Once you received your phone back, were you able to go
back into the call log?

A Yes.

Q: From the call lecg, were you able to see the different

calls that had been made that morning? Just yes 0r no.

A Yes.
Q: You received vyour phone back on the same day in gquestion?
A: Yes,

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, I'1l pass the witness.

THE COURT: Any redirect?

MS. SUDANO: Briefly, Your Honor, yes.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS, SUDANO:

Q: Evangelia, you were asked some gquestions about how it was
that the Defendant ended up with your phone. You were asked
whether you were frightened or whether he threatened vou, anything
like that. I just want to clarify, why is that you gave the
Defendant ycur phone?

A He asked to borrow it. .

Q: Wwhy did he ask to borrow it?

MS. SPELLS: Objection. Speculation.
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M5.

SUDANO:

THE CQURT:

THE WITNESS:

It’s his statement.
Don’t guess. If you know,

He didn’t tell me why he needed it. He just

said he wanted to make a phone call. Not to who he was calling or

BY MS, SUDANO:

(0N
At

(0N

So he told you it was to make a phone call?

Yes.

Now I just want to clarify scmething else too. Were you

using your phone when the Defendant asked to borrow it?

A

20w O

L&

>

Qe
A

Qs

Yes.

Were you texting with it?

Yes.

So it was in your hand?

Yes.

It wasn’t in your backpack? -

No.

It wasn’t just sitting next to you on the bus stop?

No.

and you actually physically handed it from your hand to

the Defendant’s hand?

A

Yes.

And then after that is when he got up and walked away?

Yes.

and that was I think you said maybe five seconds or just
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a few seconds?
As Yes.
Q: Now you were asked when you bought your iPhone 5S. Do

you remember specifically when you bought it in 20157

A:  No.

Q: You said you’d had just a few months?

Az Just ébout, ves.

Q: wa much did vou pay for your iPhone?

A: The exact, I'm not sure. About four to five.
Q: Four to five what?

A Hundred. I'm still paying it cff.

Q: Now, you’'re also asked a couple of questions about your
backpack and you said you left your backpack at the bus stop.

A Yes.

Q: Why did ycu leave your backpack at the bus steop?

A I wasn’t even thinking about it when I got up and ran
after my phone.

Q: Now, you’re also asked about the description that you

gave the Defendant and you said at a couple c¢f points that you had

not -- you’d given kind of a bad descripticn.
IA: Yes.
Q: And I think you also said that you remembered some things

a little bit better after you had the opportunity to see him again;
is that fair?

A Yes,.
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Q: Now, I just want to clarify. You heérd the 911 call,
right?

A Yes.

Q: Was the 911 call made before you saw the Defendant.a

second time or after you saw him the second time?

Al Before I saw him the second time.

Q: Were you able to give a descripticn of his race?

A Not a valid one.

Q3 But at the time you thought he was African American; 18

that right?
At Yes.

Qs and fair to say that this all happened at night time?

A Yes.

Qs Fair to say it was a little bit dark?

Az Yes.

Q: Now were vyou able to give the description again about

what clothing he was wearing?

Ay Yes.
Q: Were you able to give a descripticon about his height?
A Yes.
Q: And a description about his weight?
A: Not numbers. Just like body.
His build?
Yeah.

< oz 9

You gave a description about his build?
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A Yes,

Q: You gave a description abbut his hair?

Al Yes,

Q: YQu gave a description akout his age?

A Yes.

Q: Now, at some point after you saw the Defendant a second

time, did you write a second statement for the police?

A: Yes.

Q: Now even in that second statement that you gave after you
saw the Defendant a second time; did you give a description of his
race?

A Yes.

Q1 What was the description you gave that second time after
you saw him?

A African American.

O 3¢ both times you saw him that night you thought he was
African American?

A Yes.

Q: And just to clarify, the Defendant is the person that you
saw with the police and the person that took your phone on July 31°%°
of 20157

A Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, no further guestions.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

MS. SPELLS: No, Your Honor. Thank you.
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THE COURT: Thank you very much, Thank you for your
testimony. I appreciate it. You can go ahead and step down and
you’ 11 be excused. You're good.

THE WITNES3: Thank you.

THE COURT: You guys want to take a couple minute break?

You’ re all right. You want to keep going? Okay. Call ancther .
witness.

MS. SUDANC: The State calls Brianna Roche.

THE MARSHAL: Remain standing and raise ycur right facing the
Clerk.

BRIANNA ROCHE

having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn,

teétified as follcows:
| THE CLERK: Please be seated and then state and spell your
name for the record,

THE WITNESS: B-R-I-A --

THE COURT: And grab -- next to that microphone.

THE WITNESS: B-R-I-A-N-N-A, R-0-C-H-E.

THE COURT: Go ahead.‘

MS. SUDANO: Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: [indecipherable] Brianna. I want to draw your attention

to July 31°% of 2015 approximately two or three in the morning. Do

you recall that date and time?
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A I do.

Q: Where were you at that time?
Al Home.
Q: Had anvbody else been at your house earlier on the night

of July 30" into the morning of July 31°%7
A No.
Q: Now, were you talking to anybody on the night of July

31°%%, 20157

Az Yes.

Qs Who were vou talking to?

Az Evangelia.

Q: Evangelia who just left the courtroom?

A Yes.

Qs How were you talking to her?

A Text.

Q: Had Evangelia been at your house prior to or earlier on
in the evening of July 30 --

A No.

Qe -~ 20157 At some peint did you and Evangelia step

texting that night?

A Yes.

Q: Can you describe what happened there?

A: T texted her and I just didn’t get a reply, so I texted
her a few more Limes.

Q: And she never responded to you?
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A No.

Q: At some point later on iﬁ the night de you get a phone
call?

A: Yeah.

Q: Who called vou?

A Evangelia.

Q: Do you recall about what time Evangelia called you?

A Around three.

Q: Is that 3 a.m.?

A Around that, ves.

Q: Now, you’re quiet, so I'm going to ask you to speak up so
evefyone -=

L Sorry.

Q: -- could hear you, okay? Now, I.don’t want to go

specifically into what you said to each other on the phone call,
but based on that call, did you do anything next?

A Yes.

Q: What did you do?

At Tracked her iPhone.

Q: How did you track her iPhone?

A Find my iPhone app.

Q: And can you just generally explain a little bit what the
find my iPhone app is?

A: You put in their Apple ID and their password and you can

see where their phone is,
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Qs
A
Q:
goes bhack
| A:
Q:
where her

A;

Az

Q:

and did yeou have Evangelia’s Apple ID and her password?
Yes.

So were you -- you were tracking the actual phone that

to her phone number and her Apple account?

Yes.

Now, were you doing anything with the informaticn about
phone wasg?

I was on the iPhone with the police.

Now; what were vou doing with the police on the phone?

Telling them every location.

Do you remember those locations?

Most of them.

Okay. Where’s the first location that you remember that

rhone being?

A: The Eastside Cannery.

Q: Okay. How long was the phone at the Eastside Cannery?

A: About ten minutes.

Q: Okay. Where did the phone go next after it was at the
Cannery?

As A neighborhood near it.

O How long was it in that neighborhcod?

iy Roughly 20 minutes.

Q: Where did the phone go next after it left that
neighborhood?

A McDeonald’' s,
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Q: Do you remember where that McDonald’s was?

A I don’t.

Q: And how long was the phone at the McDonald’s?

A; Fifteen minutes.

Q: Where did the phone go after the McDonald’s?

A: An apartment complex.

Q: Do yvou remember where the apartment complex was?

A I don’t.

Q: Do you remember what the apartment complex was called?
A: Oasis I think.

Q: So it goes to the -- the phone goes to the Oasis complex.

Now, where did the phone go after it went to the Oasis complex?

A The internet cut off so I got -- I didn't get any; I
wasn’t able toc track it.

Q: So conce the phone ends up in that apartment complex, kind
of lost signal and you couldn’t figure out where the phone was
geing anymore?

Al Yes.

Q: Okay. Where -- well, as the phone is moving to all of

these different locations, what are you doing?

A: I'm refreshing it and just telling the copy every
location.
Q: Okay. Now, were yocu ever actually with Evangelia on this
night?
A: I was before,
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Q: So when you say before, when were you with her?
A Around one I want to say.

Q: and éo.was that 1 a.m. or 1 p.m.?

A: One a.m.

OH Now, where were the two of you together?

A I don’t remember,

Q: And so what happens at 1 o’clock in the morning?
A: She takes me home.

Q: Okay. So at 1 o’clock in the morning she went back to
your house with you?

A Around the neighborhood, yeah.

Q: How did you guys get there?

MS. SPELLS: Objection. Relevance.

THE COURT: No. Overruled. Go ahead.

BY MS3. SUDANO:

Q: How did the two of you get to your house?
A: Bus I believe.
Q: So she takes you back to your house on the bus. If you

know, where did she go after that?
A: The bus stop that’s near my house.

Q: What bus stop is that?

A The one on I want to say cn Flamingo.

Q: Flamingo and what?

A: I don’t remember,

Qe So you two get back to your house taking the bus and then
173
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as far as

you know Evangelia gets on the bus stop at Flamingo. Do

you know where she was going?

A
Q:
A:
Q:

and forth

1bus stop?

At
Qs
Az

Q:

The bus stop near the suites.

So is that the one at Flamingo and Boulder Highway®

Yes.

And were you two in communication as she’s traveling back
on the -- on the bus down Flamingo?

Yeah,

Do you know where she was when she stopped responding to

The bus stop.

So she texted you c¢r told you before that she was at that

Yes,
and then that’s when vyou stopped getting calls from her?
Yes.

Or I'm sorry, text from her. ‘Now, at any point after

that did you actually leave your house?

Ac:

Q:

No.

Sc 211 of your involvement in this is just cover the phone

with tThe police?

A
Q1
night?

A

Yes,

How is it that you got into contact with the police that

I got a call from them.
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of phone do vou have?

Q
A:
Q:
A
Qs

A

Q:

iPhone?

it.

A

MS.

THE

MS.

MS.

THE

You

THE

THE

MS.

THE

THE

MS.

One of the officers called you?

Yes.

And is that when you started relaying the infoermation --
Yes.

-- to the officer? And were you using -- well what kind

iPhone,

And sc were you using your iPhone to track Evangelia’s

My sister’s iPhone at first.

SUDANC: Your Honor, nc further questions.

COURT: {(kay. Cross?

SPELLS: Court’'s brief indulgence.

[Defense counsel conferring]

SPELLS: Your Honor, we’ll pass the witness.

COURT: Okay. Thank you for your testimony. I appreciate
can go ahead and step down. You'll be excused.
WITNESS3: Thank you.

COURT: Thank you again.

You got somebody else?

SUDANO: Your Hener, can we appreoach briefly?

COURT: Sure.

[Bench conference commenced at 3:20 p.m.]
COURT: I think no-matter we got to take a break here.

SUDANCO: Perfect., I was just going to ask for that. My
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other officer is supposed to be here at 4, so I can see if he’s on
his way --

THE COURT: Yeah. We’'ll take --

M3. SUDANC: =- tc get here a little bit quicker.

THE COQURT: That’s fine. We’ll take a break -- break. They
need a breakf

MS5. SUDANO: Yeazh,

THE COURT: "2ll right. How long do ycu anticipate?

MS. SUDANO: He won’t be too long. I had texted another
officer to see --

THE COURT: Are we going -- are we going -- are we going tc be
able toc be done by 5, right?

MS., SUDANO: We will. Absoclutely.

THE COURT: Okay. Perfect.

MS. SUDANC: We’ll be done by 5.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SPELLS: We have to give the lady her break between four
and five. She needs to take her shot between four and five.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. SPELLS: So ==

MS. SUDANC: I only have one. I called all my other officers
and they’re all graveyard officers, so [indecipherabie] got my
messages now.

THE COURT: So just tell me {indecipherable] we’ll be in a

break for a few minutes and then we will [indecipherable] ready to
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go [indecipherable] -- bkay.
[Bench conference concluded at 3:21 p.m.]

THE COURT: All right. We’re going to take a short break. I
don’t know exactly how long it’s going to be. Your shot at 4
of clock?

UNIDENTIFIED JURCR: Yeah.

THE COQURT: Okay. We’ll try to work it sc that we can have a
break right around 4 o’clock. This might ke a ten minute break.
It might be a 30 minute break. I’m not guite sure how it'’s going
to work. Just go relax. Have a bathroom break. Take it easy.

I'11 admonish the member of the jury -- I have to say
this to you every time whether it’s a two minute break or an
overnight break. And I want to -- let me slow down and I’ll say it
slow to make sure you know what I'm saying.

I admonish the members of the jury not to converse or
discuss amongst themselves or with anyone else on any subject
connected or related tec this trial. Nor watch, listen or read any
read any reports or commentaries regardinj this trial through any
mediuom of information; that means radio, television, newspapers,
;nternet, telephone, iMessages, anything you can possibly dream up.
Don’t watch, listen or read anything about this trial. Don’t form
or exbress any opinions on any subject connected or related to this
trial until such time that this case had been finally submitted.

2ll right. You guys go relax. We’ll see you in a little

while, probably -- probably abcout 10 or 15 minutes.

177

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibarra
C-15-308774-1

346



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

[Outside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: All right. We’re outside the presence of the
jury. Anything we need to cover? You're all good?

MS. SPELLS: We’re all good, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MS. SUDANC: Thank yecu, Your Honor,

[Recess taken from 3:23 p.m. to 4:02 p.m. ]
[Outside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: We’re outside the presence of the jury. Anything
we need to address? We’re going to -- how many witnesses do you
think we can get on?

MS. SUDANO: I only have cne that was avallable this afternocon
to come down.

THE COURT: Okay.

M3. SUDANO: So he will be short. They’ll be out of here well
before five any way today.

THE CQURT: Perfect. Perfect,

MS. SPELLS: Shall we just check with the cne —-

THE COURT: She’s taken her shot.

MS. SPELLS: Yeah, bkay.

THE COURT: She’s all taken care of.

[Inside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Everybody haﬁe g seat. Will the parties stipulate

to the presence of the jury.

MR. WOOD: We will.
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MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Very good. All right, The next witness for the
State 1isv?

MS. SUDANO: State calls Carlos Morales please.

THE MARSHAL: Remain standing, raise your right hand, face t
Clerk.

CARLOS MORALES

having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn,
testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Please be seated and then state and spell your
name for the record.

THE WITNESS: First is Carlos. Last name Morales, M-Q-R-A-L

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SUDANOC:

Q: Sir, how are you emploved?
A I work for Metro.
Q: In what capacity?

A: In patrol.

Qs How long have you been a patrol officer?

A Ten years.

Qs Now I want to draw your attention to July 31%° of 2015.
Were vou working that day?

A Yes,

Q1 What was your shift on July 31%% of 20157

17%
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A From 10 p}m. to 8 a.m.
Q: I want to draw your attention specifically to about 3
a.m. on the morning of July 31°° of 2015. Arcund that time, did you

get a call regarding a cellphone?

Az Yes,

o} What was the nature ¢f that call?

A There was a victim who had her phone taken away.

Q1 Now do you know where that occurred?

A It happened at Nellis and Flamingo.

Q: Now did yocu eveﬁtually respond to that cail?

Aq No.

Q: So did some other officer respond to that call?

A Yes.

Q: Sc you were not the primary cfificer on that call?
A No.

Q: At some point thcough, do you assist with that call?
A Yes.

Qs How did that come about?

Az I was in a different call with my partner and we heard

that the phone was pinging around Nellis and Vegas Valley which --
which was where we were.

Q: Wren you say pinging what do you mean by pinging?

Al There's a cellphone app vyou can download on your phone.
You register it. So just in case you lose it, you can use somebody

else’s phone to find your -- fo find your phone.
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Q: And is that the track my iPhone or the find my iPhone
app®?

A: . Yes.

Q: You explained it a little bit, but do you know a little
bit more about it? Can you explain it just generally for the
ladies and gentlemén of the jury?

A It’s like —-- it’s every Smartphone has an app you can
download. You register it. Just in case you lose your phone. You
can use somebody else’s phone to download the -- the find my iPhone
and then vou bring up your account and it tells you where your
phone’s at.

Q: aAnd when it’s pinging, is it pinging cell towers, GPS; do
you know?

A Not exactly.

Q: One of those two things.

A: T think it was GPS.

MR. WOCD: Objection. Speculatioﬁ.

THE COURT: 211 right. I agree, but it doesn’t make
difference [indecipherable] --

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: Now you said that at some point this phone was pinging
near Vegas Valley and Nellis; 1is that correct?

Al Yes.

Q: Is that here in Clark County, Nevada?

A Yes.
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Q: Now did you and your partner respend to somewhere in the

area of Vegas Valley and Nellis?

A Yeas.
Qs Specifically, where did you respond?

A: We went to the -- I think it was Stonegate apartments,
3055 Nellis.

Q: You said you think; are you sure that that’s the
apartment complex in this particular case?

A: No. BEither that or it’s the Oasis.

Q: Now, would there have been a log taken of where you and
partner respond in this particular call?

A Yes.

Q: Would looking at that log refresh your recollection as to
the specific apartment complex?

A Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, may I approach the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.

BY M5. SUDANO:

Q: Officer Morales, I’'m showing vou some dispatch log; could
you loock at that generally and confirm that that’s the -- the
dispatch log for this particular_event nunber?

A: Yes.

Q: and go ahead and look through there and see if that
refreshes your recollection as to the particular apartment complex

and go ahead and set it down when you’re done.

182

RCUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibkarra
C-15-308774-1

3h1



10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

20

2

22

23

24

25

A The name ¢f the apartment was Oasis -- Oasis Meadows.
Q: So your memory was reflect -- refreshed by looking

through the dispatch log?

A Yes.

Qs Now where is the Oasis Meadows complex located?

A It’1l be on the corner of Nellis and Desert Inn.

o Do you know the specific address for that apartment
cémplex?

A, Thirty, fifty-five South Nellis.

Qs Are you sure that that’s the correct address for this
particular apartment complex?

A: No.

Q: Would looking at the dispatch lcg refresh your
recollection?

A: Yes.

MS3. SUDANO: May I approach, Ycur Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Qs Ckay. For the reccrd, Officer, again I'm showing ycu the

dispatch log for this particular event number.
A I can’t find the address.
Qs Let me draw your attention to this last page here.
A Ch, 3150 Scuth Nellis.
Q: and did looking through the dispatch log refresh your

recollection ag to the address?
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A Yes.

Q: Okay. And was this ~- I'm sorry, 3150 Nellis -- South
Nellis?

A Yes.

THE COURT: You sure you =-- you sure you don’t want to stay
there?

MS. SUDANO: Yes,
THE CQURT: Ckay.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: Is that here in Clark County, Nevada?
A Yes,
Q: Now, fair to say that the call was already in progress

before you and your partner responded to the Oasis Meadows
Apartment complex?

A Yes,

Q: Do you know if there were any other addresses where
officers had responded prior to going to the apartment complex?

A I think there was making something about McDenald’s con
Nellis and Vegas Valley?

Q: When you got to that Oasis Meadows Apartment complex,
what if anything did you do?

A We -- before we went in there we heard Officer Kunz was
with somebody who fit the description, so we went and backed them.

QO When you say that Officer Kunz was with someone who

matched the description, what descriptiocn are you talking about?
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A: I think it was a black male with a black tank top and
black -- black shorts,

Q: And so was that the description of the person who had
taken the cellphone?

A Yes.

Q: Now, vyou said that we went somewhere, When you say we,
who are your referring to?

A: Myself and Qfficer McFarland.

Q: Was that your partner on July 31°° of 20157

A: Yes. We were riding together.

Q: Now were you able to make contact with Officer Kunz and

the individual that they had or he had stopped in the apartment

complex?
A Yes.
Qs Do you see that individual here in the courﬁroom today?
A: Yes.
Q: Could you please pcint to that individual and describe an

article of clothing that he c¢r she is wearing today?

A: He's sitting over here to my left with the blue button up
shirt.

M5. SUDANO: May the record reflect identification of the.
Defendant? |

THE COURT: Yes. The record will so show.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: Now where was it exactly that you first came into contact
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with the Defendant?
A I think it was in the far end of the property in the back
in the -- by building 12 I think it was.

Q: Do you recall approximately what time it was that you

first made contact with the Defendant near Building 127

i No.
Q: Would looking at the dispatch log refresh your

recollection as to —-

A Yes,
Q: -— at the time you -- you made it to the complex?
A: Yes.

MS., SUDANQO: Thank vyou, Your Honor.
I'm showing you the dispatch log and also showing you,

Officer, the list of call signs for that time.

THE WITNESS: Three, forty.
BY MS. SUDANO:

Qs You arrived at the apartment complex at 3:407

A We assigned ourselves at 3:40 and then -- yeah, around
roughly the same time. | |

oF And is that A.M.?

A Yes,

Q: Now when you arrived at that apartment complex at 3:40 in
the morning, were there a lot of people outside?

A No.

QO In fact, were there any c¢ther attendants or any people
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other than the Metro officers outside?

A
Q
Az
Q

Ceorrect.
Correct, there were no other pecple?
Nobedy else. Just us.

Okay. Now, once you arrived in the area where Officer

Kunz and the Defendant were, what if anything did ycu do?

A

A
Q:
apartmeﬁt
A
(O
A:
O
arriving?

A

I walked to him and asked him for.his information.
When you say him, do you mean the Defendant?

Yes.

Did he provide you with his information?

Yes.

New at some point does anybody else arrive at the
complex that night?

Yes. )

Who arrived at the apartment com?lex?

It was Qfficer Navarro with wvictim,

What was the purpose of Officer Navarro and the victim

To see if the person we had stopped was the person who

tcok the victim’s phone.

Q:
arrived?
A

O:

Where were you when Officer Navarro and the victim

In -- inside my patrol car.
What if anything did you deo at that point?

Just -- T was just checking his information, run him
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through the computer and then when Navarrc showed up, I got outside
and stand next to -- to the suspect.

0: And what was the purpose of standing next to the suspect?

A Just to make sure he doesn’t run.

Q: Now, were you also standing next to him so that the
victim and Officer Navarro could drive up and see if it was
potentially the same indlvidual?

A: Yes. I had him -- yeah, I had to move him a little bit
over ‘cause nhe was in front of the patrol cars. We had to move him
a little bit over in front of the spct iights.

Q: and why did you have to move the Defendant over in front

of the spot lights?

A: ‘Cause 1t was dark. There was no lighting.

Q: So was that just so that the victim could actually see
him --

A: Yeah.

Q: -- and --

A Get a good view of the suspect we had in front of the
car.

Q: Dc yvou know if the victim was able to make an
identificafion?

A Yes.

Q: And --

A It was -- per the victim, it was ?ositive.

Q: So the victim confirmed that the Defendant was the
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individual who had taken her cellphone?

A Yes.

M$S. SUDANQ: Your Honor, may I approach the Clerk?

THE COURT: Sure.

M5. SUDANQ: May I.approach the witness?

THE COURT: Sure.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: Officer Morales, I am approaching with State’s proposed
Exhibits 11, 12 and 13. If you could just lock through those and
let me know 1f you recognize what’s depicted there generally.

A Here’g Nellis and here’s Vegas Valley and the apartment
should be the entrance -- should be right here. We were way in the
back corner.

Q: Okay. So vou’re looking now at State’s proposed Exhibit
1i and you’ve identified as the intersection of Vegas Valley and
Nellis just generally?

A Uh-huh.

Q: Is that a fair and accurate depiction of the area of
Vegas Valley and Nellis on July 31°% of 20157

A Yes. |

Q: Ckay. ©Now let’s go on to State’s proposed.Exhibit iz.
Do you recognize what’s depicted there?

A Yes,

Q: And was it that just generally?

A Here’s —-- here’s Nellis and [indecipherable] Valley --
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Vegas Valley would be right here and then this is the entrance to

the Oasis. _And I think we were some where back -- back here.

Q:. Okay. And again, is this a fair and accurate depiction
of that apartment complex at 3150 Nellis on July 31°%, 20152

A Yes,

Q: Okay. And then moving onto State’s preoposed Exhibit 13;
dd you recognize just generally what’s depicted in State’s proposed
Exhibit 137 |

A Yes. It’s the Qasig apartment complex.

Q: And is that a fair and accurate depiction of the
apartment complex on July 31°° of 20157

Az Yes.

MS., SUDANO: Your Honor, at this time, the State wculd move
for admission of proposed Exhibits 11, 12 and 13.

THE CCURT: Any objections?

MR, WOOD: No objection, Your Honor,

TEE COURT: Eleven, twelve and thirteen are all admitted.

[State’s Exhibits 11, 12 and 13 admitted]

BY M3, SUDANC:

Q: Your Honcr, permission to publish?

A Yes.

Q: Officer Morales, I'm showing you up on the screen here
State’s Exhibit 11. 'So can you mark on the screen -- if you

actually touch the screen it’1ll draw on it,

A Okavy.
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THE COURT: Touch the screen. You can go like that and then -

BY MS. SUDANO:
Q: If you hit the bottom right corner or the bottom left
corner, I'm not sure which in this department, it’11 clear out.
A: It did.
THE COURT: I’11 clear it for vyou.
BY MS. SUDANG:
Q: So just generally what are we looking at here?
A Here’s -- here’s Nellis. &and here’s apartment complex

right there.

Q: And that’s at 3155 South Nellis you were talking about?

Al Yes.

oF And it’s the Oasis -- the Casis Meadows Apartment
complex?

A Yes.

Q: And there are a couple other areas marked on this map.

Can —-
THE COURT: You want me to clear it?
M3, SUDANQ: You don’t have to clear it yet, Your Honor. No,

thank you.

So, can you see up at the top right there’s an address on

THE WITNESS: Right here.

BY MS. SUDANO:
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Q: Yeah. What is that address?

A: That’s the McDonald’s address.

Q: Ckay. And that’s the 2886 South Nellis?
A Yes,

Q: And is that the -- where was that located?

Ay At the corner of Vegas Valley and Nellis.

Qﬁ Okay. I didn’t realize this is actually a little bit cut
off, but you’ve got something that says Boulder Highway on the
bettom left.

A And Flamingo.

Q: And so that’s in the ares of Boulder Highway and
Flamingo?

A: Yes. Right here.

Q: So you just highlighted Flamingo for us?

A: Yes, and Nellis.

Q: New 1s there anything significant about that. intersection
down there at Boulder Highway and Flamingo as it relates to this
particular case?

Aq 1 think this is where the -- I think the victim -- the
victim was at a bus stop which is on the corner right here.

Q: So right there on that corner near Boulder Highway and
Flamingo and Nellis?

A Yes.
MS. SUDANQ: Could yvou clear that one out please, Your Honor?

Thank you.
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Now, I’m showing you Exhibit 12. What’s depicted here in
Exhibit 127 ‘\
THE WITNESS: Here’s -- here’s Nellis and this is Qasis.
BY MS., SUDANO:

Q: And s0 that’s the apartment complex that we were talking
gbout earlier?

A Yes.

Q: Now, I'm going to show you Exhibit 13. Thank you, Your
Honor. What’s depicted there in Exhibit 137

A: The Oasis complex again.

Q: Now when I was up at the witness stand with you you
started to indicated that the entrance to the complex and where vou
responded.

A Nellis runs --

THE COURT: I don’t know what’s going on.

THE WITNESS: OCkay. Here we go. That’s Nellis.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q: So running north, south on this photo?

A: Uh-huh. This is the entrance and we went to go back --
Kunz in the back over right there.

Q: So, the top right corner I guess is the northeast top
corner of this complex; is that faif?

A Yes.

G And do you recall specifically where in that corner or

just generally that corner?
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A I'm not sure if it was this -- that walkway or this
walkway. 1t was one of those two walkways.

Q: Okay. So one of the two upper most right buildings is --
is generally where you responded to?

A Yeah.

Q: Now, just to clarify, when you were going back there,

were there a lot of people back in that corner?

A: No. It was -- it was pretty dark. There was no lights
in between the -- the buildings.
o Qe So there were no lights at all back there?
A: No. |

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, at this time I have no further
questions,
THE COURT: Okay. Cross examination.

CROS3S EXAMINATION

BY MR. WOOD:

Q: Officer, you said you’ve been with Metro for a while,
correct?

A: Yes,

Q: You'’ve -- I think you said ten years, correct?

A: Yés.

Q:  And I’m guessing in that time you probably handled a lot
of cases like this before, correct?

A Yes,

Q: Have you worked in any other units in Metro while you’ve
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been there for the past ten years?

Ay No. I’ve been on graveyards for ten years in patrol.

Qs Always with patrol. Now, vou're familiar with various
theft crimes, correct?

A: Yes.

0 You’re actually familiar with pickpocket crimes, correct?

A Yes.

Q Purse snatches?

MS. SUDANQ: Your Honor, -I'm going to object and ask to
approach.

THE CQURT: Sure.

[Bench conference commenced at 4:25 p.m.]

THE COURT: [indecipherable]

MR. WOOD: T think it goes towards his experience. I think he
can speak to it as an officer.

THE CQURT: [indecipherable] crime of petty larceny as opposed
to larceny from the person.

MR. WOOD: No. I’m just going to ask what [indecipherable] in
terms of pickpocketing.

MS. SUDANO: My concern obviously is that [indecipherable] get
to the [indecipherable] from this jury through this officer. I
don’t think he could speak to [indecipherable] specific case or
charging decisions that were made.

MR. WOOD: I’'m not going to ask him about any charging

decisions [indecipherable] --
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MS. SUDANO: I think I’m going to also ask that we not go into
okay, what’s your understanding of what a pickpocket is and what’s
your understanding of what a person [indecipherable] laying out the
elements te a crime,.

THE COURT: Well, it’s [indecipherable] if we’re getting to
explain these elements [indecipherable] elements of petty larceny
[indecipherable] explain the elements of the larceny from a person.

MS. SUDANG: And I doﬁ’ﬁ disagree.with that. I just don't
think that it’s proper to ask the officers what their
interpretation of anything is.

THE COURT: Well, I’m going [indecipherable] you need to clear
that he’s not the one [indecipherable) petty larceny or larceny
from a person. Those kind of decisions (indecipherable] somebody
[indecipherable] a crime [indecipherable] to determine
[indecipherablé] -~ all right. Go ahead.

[Bench cconference concluded at 4:26 p.m.]
BY MR. WOGD:
Q: Well, I'm going to go back a little bit, Officer. You --

you weren’t responsible for any charging decisions in this case,

correct?

A No.

Q: And you had a very limited sort of piece of this case?
You -=- you were the one who ultimately saw the suspect, correct?

And tock him into custody, correct?

A: No.
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Q That was?

A Officer Kunz saw him first.

Q Okay. And you were there for the show up then, correct?
A Yes.

Q: Now, going back to your experience. You've dealt_with a

pickpocket crime before, correct?

A Yes.

Q: And essentially those crimes can be done in a lcot of
different ways, correct?

A: Yes.

Qs You could have scmeone fake a bump and -- and reach in
and take something, correct?

Al Yes.

Q: You could have multiple people working.in a group to kind
cf facilitate that, correct?

A Yes.

Q0 Same sorkt of thing with purse snatching, correct?

A Yes.

O It can be done in a number of different ways, right?

A Yes.
Q: and de you know or don’t you know -- it’s probably fair

to say that it’s something that’s pretty prevalent especially on

the strip?
At Yes.
Q: And, in fact, isn’t -- isn‘t there a unit that
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specifically deals with crimes that are on the strip?

At Yes.
Q: And that’s like a tourist crime’'s unit, correct?
A: Yes,

Q: And they handle a lot of this kind of stuff, right?

Az Yes.

QQ Now, are you aware whether Metro sometimes will have an
officer pretend to be a citizen?

A Pretend to be a citizen?

Qe For -- for instance, ére you aware of whether or not
Metro has had officers impersonate a citizen with money hanging out
of their pockets?

A:. No. 1T haven’t heard anything like that.

Q: S0 you’re not aware if Metro ever had a cop pretend to be
drunk and have money hanging out? |

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, at this point I'm going to cbject to-
relevance. -

THE COURT: Thig is getting ~-

THE WITNESS: Drunk.

THE CQURT: -- qguite a bit off. I mean, this has nething to
do with the bait crime. Move on.

BY MR. WOOCD:

Q: Now, you come upon -- police come upon Mr. Ibarra,

correct? Correct?

A I'm sorry.
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1 Q: Police come upcn Mr, Ibarra?
] 2 A: Mg, =-
3 Q: At the -- at the back of the'complex, the suspect?
4 A: Ch. When Kunz found him?
5 o Correct.
7 6 L Yes. We went and backed him. Yes.
7 Q: And initially you said he standing outside by the patrol

8 || vehicle, correct?
9 A: Yes.
10 Q: And then you get word that & victim is going to be

11 || showing up, correct?

12 Az Yes.

13 Q: And based on that you get out of your car, correct?

14 A: Yes.

15 Q: and it’s kind of dark out, so you move the suspect into

16 || the spet lights, correct?

17 A: Yes, ‘cause the victim’s driving exacily right behind us

18 {| and he can’t see through the cars or through the windows ‘cause
19 {| their tinted. So I had to move him over and then move the spot

20 {| lights into him.

21 Q: And your testimony was that there was no one else around

22 || besides Metro at that point; correct, in that area?

23 A Correct.
§ 24 Qs And vyou were standing next to the suspect, correct?
25 A:  Ves,
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Q: You were in your --
A Uniform,
Q: -~ uniform? So there was no mistaking -- there’s only
one person out there who’s not wearing a uniform, correct?
A Correct.
MR. WOQOD: Court’s indulgence.
[Defense counsel conferring]
MR. WOCD: We’ll pass.
THE COURT: Any redirect?
MS. SUDANO: Briefly, Your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SUDANGC:

Q: Mr. Morales, you were asked some guestions about some of

the crimes that vou’ve investigated in your ten years with Metro;
do you remember those questions?

A: Yes.

Q: Now, you were asked, you know, whether or not you’ve seen

cases where somebody snatches a purse oz, you know, takes property

from somebody in a violent way, things along those lines; do you

remember that? Remember being asked about purse snatchings for

instance?
A Yes.
Qs Have you also seen cases where somebody would use maybe a

trick or arouse to take property from another person?

A Yes.
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Q: Now, you’re also asked questions about the tourist crime
unit, right; do vou remember those?

A Yes.

Q: And crimes abocut or questions about maybe some of the

bait programs at Metro employs?

Ar Yes.

Q: I just want to clarify. This wasn’t a tourist crime,
right?

A Ne.

Q: And it wasn’t a bait crime, right?

A: No.

Q: So it wasn’t a. crime that Was -- strike that -- to your

knowledge this crime happened to an actual citizen who lives in Las
Vegas valley? |

A Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Your Hohor, no further questions.

THE COURT:. The recross?

MR. WOOD: Briefly, Your Honor.

REDIRRCT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WOOD:

Q: Do you recall this day just asking a line of questions

about this wasn’t a bait . crime?

A Yes.
Q:' What is a bait crime?
A It’'s when a specialized unit goes out and they have some
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111-- an officer set up as a victim, would go somewhere and sit down
— 2 ||where it’s a high violent crime. Just sit down and wait ‘til

3 || somebody come up and commit a crime.

4 MR. WOQD: No further questions.

5 THE CCURT: Is that it?

8 MS. SUDANO: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you.

7 THE COURT: Thank you very much feor your testimony.

8 || Appreciate it. You can gc ahead and step down, You’re excused.
9 || Thank you once agailn, Qfficer.

10 All right. We are out of witnesses for teday. You're
i1 ||going to get an early out. And I think and if I understand

12 ||correctly, you’re going to show him the parking -- you’ve already

13 ljdone that and ycu’re going to take care of all that?

14 THE MARSHAL: Yes, Your Honor.

15 || THE COURT: = Okay.

16 THE MARSHAL: I will.

17 TEE COURT: So we’re geing to have an overnight recess. For

18 || heaven’s sakes, don’t do anything silly. Pay attention to what I’m_
_{ - 19 ||telling you about not watching, listening or reading anything that
20 ||has to do with this case. Don’t get on the internet and look stuff
21 llup. Just go home and watch football. Just relax.

22 If you see something that looks like it could be related
23 |l to this case and that is a possibility although not overly likely,
24 | just as scon as you recognize it aﬁd it could have something to do

25 [|with this case, just stop reading, ckay. You’ll have plenty of
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time to deo that if you choose to later.

So, we’re going to shoot for 10 o’clock. I’ve gone
through the calendar and I think we can -- I think we can start
right arocund 10 o’clock, okay. And.is there a possibility that we
might be done with your case?

MS. SUDANO: .I think that it’s a certainty that we’ll finish
the State’s case tomorrow. Yes, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Okay. All right. We might, you know, go through
this fairly quickly. Impressive. -All right. So, vou guys are
going to get your parking directions and you’re going to meet over
here in the morning at 10 o’cleock. Make sure when you’'re walking
through the building keep badge on. Aveid contact with anybody who
has anvthing to do with this cése. And as I said, don’'t get upset
if you see somebody out in the hallway and they Jjust don’t say
anything because that’s how we tell everybody do it. All right.

50, during this cvernight recess I admonish the members
of the jury not to converse or discuss amongst themselves or with
anyone else on any subject cennected or related to this trial.
Don’t watch [indecipherable] or read any reports or commentary
during this trial through any medium of information meaning radio,
television, newspapers, internét. And don’t form or express any
opinions on any subject connect or related to this trial until such
time as this case has been finally submitted. And it might be
sooner than we thought. All right. All right. Go relax. We’ll

see you guys in the morning.
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ATTEST: I hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my
ability.

ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3C(d) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate
Procedure, I acknowledge that this is a rough draft transcript,
expediticusly prepared, not proofread, corrected or certified to be an
accurate transcript. R

205

] ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibarra
C-15-308774-1

373



— e

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

20 |

21

22

23

24

25

Electronically Filed
02/17/2016 02:16.05 PM

RTRAN (m“. i/ﬁg‘“’“‘"‘

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, CASE NO. C-15-308774-1

vs. DEPT.  XVII

GABRIEL IBARRA,

Dafendant.

T )

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JAMES BIXLER, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2015
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT QOF PROCEEDINGS RE:

JURY TRIAL - DAY 2

APPEARANCES:
For the State: MICHELLE SUDANOC, ESQ.
Deputy District Attcrney
¥or the Defendant: JASMIN D, SPELLS, ESQ.

JEREMY WOOD, ESQ.
Deputy Public Defenders

RECORDED BY: MICHELLE RAMSEY, COURT RECORDER
1

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPBT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibarra
C-15-308774-1

374



10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

INDEX OF WITNESS(ES)

NAME

NATHANIEL NAVARRO
Direct Examination
Cross Examinaticn
Redirect Examination
Recross Examination

PAUL KUNZ
Direct Examination

PAGE

13
15
16

18

2

RCUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibarra
C~15-308774-1

375



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2015
[Proceeding commenced at 10:45 a.m.]

[Cutside the presence of the jury]

THE MARSHAL: Court will come to order. Department 17 back

in session.

THE COURT: Okay. We are -- are we on the record?

THE COURT RECORDER: Yes, we are.

THE CQURT: Okay. We are outside the presence cof the jury.
Any matters we need to address?

M3, SUDANQ: Ncne from the State, Your Honor.

MS., SPELLS: None from the Defense, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: OQOkay. Let's bring them in. You indicated

you're going to have -- of the three anticipated witnesses, you

were going to have twe?

MS, SUDANO: That's correct, Your Honor.

TEE COURT: Okay. And you can be resting?

MS, SUDANQ: Correct, Your Honor.

TEE COURT: Okay. Did you guys resclve most of the issues
about the instructions?

MS. SUDANC: We resolved some of them. We're still going t

have some issues that Your Honor may need to address and settle.

o}

THE COURT: I pulled up -- I'm pulling up the petit larceny

and larceny from the person to kind of compare them and see what

it loocks like. Tt certainly -- 4
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MR, WOdD: You can't commit a larceny from the person
without committing a petit larceny or a larceny in geheral.

THE CQURT: VYeah, depending on the value, you committed a
larceny from the person, and you would have also committed a pefit
larceny if it's under $3500 or whatever it is. So every larceny
from the person under $3500 would include the same eclements of
committing a petit larceny. Not so a larceny -- I mean, a petit
larceny. A petit larceny is éommitted with taking property --

MR. WOQD: Without =-- yeah. |

THE COURT: -- from the person. So if you take property
that doesn't amount to taking it froﬁ the perscn and a value under
$650, it's petit larceny. So the -- the element that's not in a
petit larceny that's in the larceny from the person is that the
taking has to be from a person and not in constructive possession,
in actual possession.

[Jury enters the courtroom]

THE MARSHAL: All present and accounted.

THE COQURT: Everyone, please have a seat. We'll be -~ do
the parties stipulate to the presence of the jury?

| MR. WoOD: We do.

MS. SUDANO: Yes, Ydur Honor.

THE COURT: Very good. Goocd morning. Good morning.

THE JURY: [en masse] Good morning.

THE COURT: So we're ready for the next witness. And just

to give you a little heads-up preyiew, the State is going to call
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a couple witnesses, and they're probably geing to rest, and then

‘we'll see what's going to happen on the other side. So == I think

she needs her --
Believe it or not, we're already closing in on the
end. Okay. And whe is the next witness?
MS. SUDANC: The State calls Nathaniel Navarro.
THE MARSHAL: Remain standing and raise your right hand to
be sworn.
NATHANIEL NAVARRQO
being first duly sworn as a witness, testified as
follows:
THE CLERK: Please he seated and then state and spell vour
name for the reccrd.
THE WiTNESS: My name is Officer Navarro. That's -- first
name, it's Nathaniel, N-A-T-H-A-N-I-E-L. Last name Navarro, N-A-
V-A-R-R-0Q,
THE COURT: Go ahead.
M5. SUDANO: Thank Your Honor.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q 3ir, how are vyou employed?

y:y I'm employed by Lés Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department.

Q In what capacity?

A Pat?ol officer. 5
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0 How long have you been a patrol officer?
A Approximately almost two years now.
0 I'm going to draw your'attention to July 31st of 2015.

Were you working that day?

iy Yes, ma'am.

o) What was your shift?

A Graveyard shift.

Q S50 what time to what-time?

A - From 2200 to 0800.

Q Is that 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.?

A That's correct.

Q Now, at some point during that shift, did vyou get a

call regarding a stolen cell phone?

A That is correct.

o] Do you recalllwhat time that call came.in?

a Bpproximately about 3:30, 3:36.

Q- 3:36 a.m,?

A That's éorrect.

Q Did you respond to that call?

A Yes, I did.

Q What time did you respond to the call?

Iy About 3:36.

Q So can vou explain how the call came in and you

responded about the same time?

A Actually, I was flagggd down by the victim. I was
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crossing Flamingo, geing westbound, crossing Boulder Highway. I
was flagged down by the victim themselves about 3:36.
Q So had the victim initiated & call to 911 or 311 to

dispatch prior to vou arriving at 3:367

A That is correct.

Q‘ Was that approximately 2:50 a.m.?

R That is correct.

Q S0 you just get flagged down at 3:36 a.m.?

A Yes.

Q What deo vyou do after you get flagged down by the
victim?

A Basically, I pulled over, speak to the victim, asked

her what was going on. Found out that she was related to a call

that was generated. She told me what happened.

Q Now, what was the victim's name in this particular
case?

A I believe her name is Evangelina [sic throughout]
Mantikas.

Q Did she report just generally that the phone was --

‘her phone was taken from her?

A Well, she stated that she was sitting at the bus stop

MR, WOQOD: Objection; hearsay.
THE COQURT: Well --

MS. SUDANO: And I just want.,to get just generally the nature
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that he knew her phone was taken.

THE COURT: And that's fine. Just kind of -- without
repeating what was said to .you --

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: It was related to you that a phone was taken; is
that --

THE WITNESS: That is correct, the phone was taken.

THE COURT: All right.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q S based on information you had that the phone was
ﬁaken, what, if anythin@, did you do?

A Basically, I just got the information as far aé what
xind of phone was taken, description of the suspect that the phone
Was ﬁaken by and where she last saw the suspect at.

Q Do you recall what the description of the phone was?

A I-believe it was an iPhone 5 §. It had a cover on it,
which had like an Anime character.

Q and, now, what was the description of the suspect that
you received?

A she stated it was a black male adult, about 5"5',

wearing a tank top and dark color shorts.

Q Did anybody else respond to the call with you?
A Yes.

Q Who responded?

A Officer Hibbetts, 8
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Q What, if anything, was Officer Hibbetts doing while
you were getting information about the phone and the suspect?

A Officer Hibbetts was actually on the phone speaking to

|Evangelina's, I believe, friend. She was using the Find My iPhone

app, and, basically, she was relating information to him as far‘as
where the phone could be located.

0 What was Officer Hibbetts doing with that information
once he repeivéd it?

A He was broadcasting it over the radio to other
responding officers.

Q Now, how long were you and Officer Hibbetts there with
fhe victim trying to track her phoneg?

A I beiieve maybe approximately about an hour. Maybe a

littlie bit less than hour.

Q Now, at some point do you go to a different location?
3 Yes, I do.

Q How did that come about?

A Well, we get dispatched -- or we go to ancther

location. We get notification that our other partners found a

person matching the description in a location, so --

o) What was that location?

A It was 3150 South Nellis. It's the Oasis Meadows
Apartments. | |

0 Now, based on that information, what do you do?

A What do I do? Basically, they told me where they're
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at. I take the victim and we conduct a show-up.

0 Can you walk the ladies and gentlemen of the jury Jjust
generally through the process for a show-up.

A Basically, with the show-up, we identify where the
location's going to be at. We show up with the victim.

Especially when it's graveyard, we turn our lights on. 350 what it
does 135 it actually protects the victim from the possible suspect
seeing her or him. 8o we have our spotlights, overhead lights and
our headlights on, s¢ 1t pretty much -- it blacks them out.

The péssible suspect is put at a distance so the
victim can generally see a good visual and make a good
identification of ~~ if that's the possible -- if that's the
suspect or not.

0 Did you follow all those procedures here in this
particular case?

A That is correct. I also read the victim, stating just
because we have a person in custody doesn't mean that this is the
person that we believe that might be part of the crime that was
committed. 8o I just told her, just take into consideration that
might be the person; it might not be the person.

Q You actually have a written form or written

instructions that you have to read to somebody before you do a

show-up?
A That is correct.
C And it states generalﬁy what you just said, that keep
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in mind, this may not be the person; it's important you don't
identify them just because they're here?

A That is correct.

0 Now, did vou read the victim in this particular case

those instructions?

A That is correct.

Q Did yeu do that before you conducted the show-up with
her?

A Before I conducted the show-up.

Q Now, approximately how far away from -- well, was the

victim in your car with you the entire time during the show-up?

A Yes.

Q ‘Was the suspect in a car or was he out on the street?
A He was out on the street -- well, parking lot, so --

Q How far ffom the suspect was the victim in your car at

the time you did the show-up?
A I'd say maybe approximately like 10 yards. About 5 --

5, 10, maybe less than 10, so --

0] 5 to 10 yards?
Fiy Yeah,

0 Now, what was the lighting situation just generally in
that parking lot?

A ‘As far as just the streetlights, but when we have our
overhead lights on and all our lights on on ocur vehicle, it pretty

much illuminates whatever we're faging.
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Q Was the victim in this particular case able to make an
identificaticn of the suspect who took her phone?

A That is correct.

0 - And she indicated that the person that was detained

was the same individual who had taken her phone?

)y That is correct.

Q Now, do you see that individual here in the céurtroom
today?

A To be honest, I don't recall as far as --

Q Did you ever have any face to face interaction with

that individual?

A No, I did not.

Q It was just you driving up in your car?

A That's correcé.

Q Now, approximately what time was it when you took the

victim over to the Oasis Meadows apartment complex to conduct the
show-up?
A It was approximately about four -- like 4:30, 4 -- I'd

say like 4:35, 4:36.

Q I apolégize, what was the time again, Cfficer?

A Like 4:35-ish.

Q 4:30 or 5:00 a.m.?

A Yeah.

0 And you responded to the call initially at 3:36 a.m.?
Fy That is correct. 12
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Q The initial call came ocut at =-- I'm sorry, at 2:50

A 2:50, yeah.

MS. SUDANO: Court's indulgence.
BY MS. SUDANO:

Q Now, after you conducted this show-up with the victim,
did you have any further invelvement in thié particular case?

A No. As far as just helping her recover the phene
itself, as far as just --

Q Are you just --

A Just standing by waiting till like I.D. took pictures,
and that's it. T just stcod by.

MS. SUDANO: NQ further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Cross.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR, WOOD:

Q So you were driving around, and you were hailed down
by Ms. Mantikas, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And she indicated that she had a problem, and she

\

needed your assistance?

A That 1s correct, sir.

Q and part of that was that her phone had been stolen,
correct?

A Yes, sir. 13
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Q And the value of that phone was less than $650,
correct? |

MS. SUDANOC: Objection as to speculation, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well --

BY MR. WOQD:

Q Would it refresh your recollection to review the
report?
A Sure.

[Counsel confer]
MR. WOOD: May I app;oach, Your Honor?
THE COQURT: Sure.
BY MR. WOOD:
Q Officer, I'm going to show you a pagse from the report
on this case. 1 just want to have you read this first paragraph

right there. Let me know when vou're done.

A (Witness reading document). Okay. I'm done.

Q bid that refresh your recollection?

A Yes, sir.

0 That phone was under 650, cérrect?

A That is correct, sir.

Q After you received scme indication that a suspect had
been caught, correct, and you -- you drove Ms. Mantikas over
there?

A That's correct, sir,

0 And he was standing by, himself, correct?
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A That's correct, sir, but other officers were just

around just to make sure he doesn't walk away or anything like

that, so —--
0 Were the other officers next to him or =--
A Just next to him.
Q Just next to him? And those officers were in uniform?
iy That is correct, sir.
Q Now, there's no one else out at this time, correcht?

It's just officers and the suspect?
A That's correct, sir.
Q And Ms. Mantikas was viewing from within the police

vehicle, correct?

A That is correct, sir,.
Q And you said it was approximately 10 yards?
A Correct, sir.

MR. WOOD: Court's indulgence. No further questions.

THE COURT: Redirect?

MS., SUDANC: Very briefly, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q Officer Navarro, you were asked about the value of the
phone that was taken in this particular case; is that correct?

A Did you actually write the report in this particular
case.

C No, I did not. 15
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Q Did you actually value the phone?

A No, I did not.

0 So the report says it was $600, but vyou don't have ahy
independent basis for knowing that information?

A That.is correct, I don't know.

MS. SUDANO: No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything else?

RECROSS—EXAMINATION
MR. WOOD:
Q Cfficer, reports are done on everything case, correct?
A That is correct, sir, | |
0] And the purpcse of thoée are because oftentimes when

you actually have to come in and testify, it's months or years
later, correct?

A That is correct, sir.

Q So you rely on the information in reports to refresh
your reccllection, correct?

A Correct.

Q So if something is included in a repocrt, it's
generally been bedded by someone at Metro, correct?

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, I'm going to object to this line of
questioning. He didn't write this report; he can't testify to --
- THE COURT: I think he can testify to the manner that

reports are generated and -- he does that every day. DBut don't

speculate or guess., If you don't;know the answer, just say "I
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don't know."
By MR. WOOD:
Q To your knowledge, there was a report that was done on

this case, correct?

A That is correct.

Q and you just reviewed that report, correct?

A That 1is correct.

0 That report was not written by you, though, correct?
b2 It was not written by me.

Q But it was written by éomeone who was involved in this

case, correct?

a That is correct.

0 And vou had no reason to disbelieve anything that's in
that report, correct?

A Correct.

MR. WOOD: ©No further questions.

THE COURT: Anything else?

MS. SUDANO: = No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you very much for your testimony.
Appreciate it.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You can go ahead and step down. You'll be
excused.

THE WITNESS: Yeg, sir.

MS. SUDANO: The State's next witness is Paul Runz.
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THE MARSHAL: Remain standing and raise your right hand.
PAUL KUNZ.
being first duly sworn as a witness, testified as
follows: |
THE CLERK: Please be seated and state and spell your name

for the record.

THE WITNESS: My name is Paul Kunz., That's P-A-U-L, K-U-N

MS. SUDANO: Thank Your Honor.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. SUDANO:
0 Sir, how are you employed?
A As a police officer with the Las Vegas Metropolitan

Police Department.

Q How long have you been a police officer?
A Eight years.
¢} " And drawing your attention to July 31st of 2015, Wer

you working that day?

A I was.

0 What was your shift?

A I worked the graveyard shift, 10:00 p.m.“to 8:00 a.m.
0 At some point during your shift, did a call come out

regarding a stolen cell phone?
A Yes.

C Were you the initial gfficer who respcnded to that

e
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call?

A I was not.
Q At some point did you get involﬁed in that call?
A - I did.
0 Approximately what time was that?
A T believe it was around 1:40 in the morning possibly.
Q Now, would the dispatch log to this particular case

refresh your recollection as to the time you gpecifically got

involved?

BY MS.

A Yes.
MS, SUDANO: Your Honor, may I approach the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.

SUDANO:
Q Sir, I'm showing you the dispatch log from this event
A {Witness reading document). It was a bit later,

actually, at 3:39 in the morning.

0 And that was the time that you first became involved

in the case?

A Yes.

Q And does looking at the dispatch leog refresh your

recollection as to that time?

A That's correct.

Q Now, what was the nature of your first involvement?

How did you become involved?

.\ A cell phone was takepg and Officer Hibbetts, who was
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the -- one of the first cfficers that arrived was receiving GPS
updates from the victim's phone as to where it was currently at,
and it stated -- I was in the area of Vegas Valley and Nellis, and
he said it was nsar a McDonald's over thére, so I was going over
to see if I could locate 1it.

Q Was there anything specific about that McDonald's?
Any reason in particular why you thought it was at that

McDonald's?

A He stated that's where the GPS coordinates were coming
back to.

Q And where is that McDonald's located?

A It's the northeast corner of Vegas Valley and Nellis.

Q What, if anything, did you de¢ when you responded to

the area of that McDonald's?

A I responded to that area with numerous other officers.
We circled the area to see if anvone stocd out. There was
numerous ﬁars in the drive-thru, a ccuple of gas pumps and some
pecple inside. 50 we stood by in the area just to see if the
rhone updated at all,

Q Were there other businesses in that shopping center at
Vegas Valley and Nellis?

A The only other business in that complex is a Popeye's
Chicken. That was currently closed.

Q " 80 the McDonald's was the only business in that area

that was open? 20
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iy The McDonald's is connected to a gas station.

Q The gas station, obviously, 1s cpen, too?
a Yeah.
Q What, if anything, happens while you're all standing

by a£.that McDonald's?

A We're standing by. Numerous vehicies leave. A couple
of them have numerous occupants, and we're watching them. One of
them drove out. It was a silver Impala that was occupied by four
te five people. _So I was just curious where it was geoing. I saw
it drive over to the Oasis Meadow Apartments at 3150 South Nellis,
but then Officer Hibbetts stated that the GPS still hadn't moved,
so T drove away from the vehicle, went back towards the gas
staticn. Then he updated that it had moved and it was going
towards 3150 South Nellis, so I went back to find that vehicle.

Q So I just want to break that down a little bit. So
the silver Impala catches your eye as a vehicle with several

occupants?

A Yes.

o And it was leaving a McDonald's drive-thru?

A Correcf.

Q0 and it started heading toward the Oasis Meadows

apartment ccmplex?

A That's correct.
0 What's the address for Qasis Meadows?
A 3150 South Nellis. o,
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1 0 And that's here in Clark County, Nevada?

— 2 A Correct. |

3 0 So you start to follow the vehicle over towards that
4 [[Oagis Meadows complex?

5 A Right.

6 || Q But then you get an update that the phone's still

7 ||potentially over by the McDonald's?

8 A Yes,
9 Q So what do you do at that point?
10 A I turned around, went back towards the McDonald's. As

11 | I got halfway back there, that's when Officer Hibbetts stated that
12 il the GPS had updated that it was moving, and it was right in front

13 || of the 3150 South Nellis, and that was the only vehicle over

14 || there, still the Impala, so I went to see if I could locate it.

| 15 e} Ware you abkle to locate that vehicle?
16 A I was.
% 17 o] Did you notice anything about the occupants as you

T} 18 || located that vehicle the second time?
'% 19 || A When T located it a second time, there was cone less
| 20 ||occupant. The front passenger was missing out of the vehicle.
21 e Do you know where the front passenger went?
22 A I coﬁducted a vehicle stop on it, and I asked the
23 ||driver and the other occupants where the other party had gone, and

24 || they said they dropped him off at the apartments.

25 Q And that was the Oasi§2Meadows Apartments?
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A Right.

Q Were you able to get any updated information regarding
the missing cell phone while you were conducting that vehicle
stop?

A I asked Qfficer Hibbetts because they had an ability
to make the phone make a noise. T had them do that. There was no
noise in the car. So I asked them if they had heard any noises
coming from the car --

MR. WOOD: Objection; hearsay.

THE CQURT: .You can say what he asked him.

THE WITNESS:V Correct, sir.

THE COURT: You can say what you asked.

THE WITNESS: I asked them if they'd heard any other noises
coming from the car or cell phene. They said the person they
dropped off --

THE COQURT: That's the problem. Don't say what they told
you.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q Okay. So I just want to.back up. You had asked
Officer Hibbetts to make -- or to request that the phone make a
noise?

iy Correct.

Q Were you able to hear the phone make a noise while vou

were with the occupants of that sjjver Impala?
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A No.

Q And then you ésked the occupants of that Impala if
they had -- or if they'd heard any additional noises while the
other cccupant was in the vehicle?

B Right.

Q Now, based on that conversation, what, if anything,
did you do next?

A T went to go located a perscon on foot inside the
apartment complex since they'd informed me they dropped that
person off there. |

MR, WCOD: Objection; hearsay.

THE CQURT: No. That's good.

MS. SUDANO: Okay.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q So approximately how long had passed from the time
that you first see the silver Impala at the McDonald's to the Lime
that you drive halfway to the complex, then come back towards the

McDonald's and go back to the complex a second time?

A About seven minutes.

Q 5o that whole interaction is about seven minutes?

A Yes.

Q and then after vou conduct that car stop, you go hack

into the Oasis Meadows complex?
A Correct.

Q What, 1f anything, dozyou do once you get to the
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apartment complex?

A Numerous other officers that responded there, the ones
that were at the McDonald's, relocated over there because that's
where the GPS updated. I know another officer had stopped two
individuals, but didn’t believe they were related, so we were
still locating. Officer Hibbetts was stili getting GPS updates
from the phone that it was moving northeast through the complex,
so we were still trying to locate.

Q Okay. Now, approximately what Lime was it that vyou
arrived at the Qasis Meadows complex?

A The traffic stop I conducted was right across the
street, so probably two minutes after I initially made thertraffic

stop. So around 3:50, I believe.

Q Okay. So 3:50 a.m., you end up in the apartment
complex?

Al Approximately, yes.

Q Were there any other people around in the complex?

A There was the two persons that I believe Officer

Woodard stopped. He had been in contact with them while other
officers went to assist him just in case. And I continued

locating.

o] Now, other than those two people and the officers were
there, any other people out and about in the complex at 3:50 in
the morning?

a Not that I saw, No. 554
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Q Okay. Approximately how long were you walking throug
the apartment complex and getting updates from Officer Hibbetts
that the phone is still in the complex?

A 20 to 30 minutes, I believe.

Q What happeﬁs after 20 or 30 minutes walking through
the complex?

A The signal continued to go northeast. I continued to
walk that direction till I came almost to the wall that borders
3070 South Nellis, the neighboring apartment complex, i saw a
male with the matching clothing description walking away from me
at a rather fast pace. He approaches a male standing by his
doorway, and then -he continues tc walk away, and he walks east
around the building.

o] S0 let me break that down a little bit. You saw é

male whoe matched the description of the suspéct who had taken a

phone?
A It was a call-in description, yes.
o) And he interacted with another individual?
A There was a person.standing just right outside their

door talking on a cell phone,

Q Do you recall what apartment that conversation

occurred at?

A I do not know.
0] Now, could you tell if those two individuals had a
cenversation? 26

h
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)iy It looked like the male walking briefly stopped to
talk to the person on the cell phone, but they didn't seem to know

them and wanting nothing to do with him, so he continued walking.

Q Were you close enough to hear what was said?
A I was not.
Q Now, what, if anything, did you do after seeing that

male whose clothing matched the description of the suspect
continued walking?

A I made my way up there, asked the person on the cell
phone, hey, do yoﬁ know that guy? They said they did not. 8o I
continued to try and locate him. I came up to the end of the
building where he turned. I didn't see him initially, so 1
continued walking eastbound and loccated him on the north -- or the

cast side of the building where I'd initially seen him.

0 Now, do you see that suspect here in the courtroom
today?

I I do.

0 Would you please point to that individual and identify

an artible of clothing he's wearing today.

A Right there, gray shirt and tie.

MS. SUDANG: Would the recqrd reflect identification of the
Defendant?

THE CQURT: Yes, the record will so show.

BY M35. SUDANO:

Q Incidentally, how far,away from the Defendant were you
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when you first saw him in the complex?
A Initially, I was probably about 50 yards away.
Q What, if anything, did you do when you saw the

Defendant Ifrom about 50 yvards away?

A T continued to close distance on him becaﬁse it's a
large complex, and people often run through there. Sc I wanted to
maka sure I was a bit closer hefore I identified myself.

9) Were you eventually able to close that distance?

A I was.

Q Did you have constant sight of the Defendant while vyou
were closing that distance?

A I leost him when he turned arcund the building both
times.

Q Approximately how long was he out of your -- your
sight?

A A total of a minute.

Q Were you eventually able to contact him?

A I was,. |

Q How did that come about?

A He was continued to -- after he made that east turn,
he turned south, and then he was con the north side -- or, sorry,

the east side of the building where I initially saw him. I caught

up to him there, Said, Metro Police, I need to talk to you for

minute. He stopped, and I asked him he stayed in the complex.

a

He

informed me he didn't. I told higy hey, we're looking for someone
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who had their cell phoné [sic| taken and you match the description
of that person, so I need to talk to you about this.

Q Now, at some point did another officer respond and
take over?

A s I loqated him, I advised where I was. Officer
Giese showed up and Officer Morales and McFarland arrived.

Q Now, did Officer Morales take control of the
Defendant, for lack of a better term?

A Yes. He -- I was asking for his name. He wasn't very
forthcoming giving it initially, so Officer Morales saild, come
with me over to the car, and that's where they continued to
discuss everything.

Q Okay. Now, did you stay in that general area where

you had first come into contact with the Defendant?

A Yes,

Q Did you find anything of significance in that area?
A I did not, no.

0 Did you eventually see anything of significance'in

that area?

A 0fficer Giese advised he found a phone matching the
victim's.

MR. WOOD: Objection; hearsay.

THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MS. SUDANO:

Q Now, without telling pg what Officer Giese, did you
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A Yes. Inside of a bush, there was a cell phone
matching the descript -- the victim's.
Q Where was that cell phone located with relation to

| sight of him; is that fair?

yourself see something of evidentiary value in that area?

where you had‘first come into contact with the Defendant?

A It was the buiiding directly east te us, right where
we were standing on the north side of it in a bush.

Q Now, when you first came into contact with the

Defendant, approximately how far away from that bush was he?

A 20, 25 feet, I believe.

Q At some point prior to that, had he been closer toc the
bush?

A That was the walking direction hé’d ceme from after T

initially located him, when he turned. It was the path he took
from where I initially saw him to where I came in contact with
him,

Q So it was the path he took where you eventually lost

A Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, may I approach the Clerk?
THE CCURT: Sure.

MS. SUDANO: May i approach the witness, Yocur Honor?
THE COURT: fes.

BY MS. SUDANC:

Q Officer, I'm approachjmng you with what has been marked
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as State's Proposed Exhibits 2 through 8. Can you go ahead and

|take a look through those pictures, please.

A Yes. (Witness reading documents).

Q Do you recognize all those photos?

a I do.

Q Just generally what's depicted in that series of
rhotos?

a Tt's Building 13 at the Oasis Meadows apartment

complex, which is the building that was just east of us where I
located the Defendant, the area where I came in contact with him,
and the bush where the cell phone was located, as well as the
picture of the cell phone in the bush.

0 Now, are all those photos a fair and accurate
representation of the building and the area arcound the apartment -
- or around Building 13 and the bush where the cell phone was
located on July 31lst of 20157

A Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Your Honor, at this time the State would move
for the admission of Proposed 2 through 8.

THE COQURT: Any objections?

MR. WOOD: No.

THE COURT: State's Proposed Exhibits 2 through 8 are all
admitted.

[State's Exhibits 2 through 8 admitted into evidencel

M&. SUDANO: May I have'per@ﬁssion to publisgh, Your Honor?
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1 THE COURT: Yes.

] 2 [|BY M3. SUDANO:

3 - Q Officer, I'm showing you Exhibit 2 here. What is

4 ||depicted there in State's Exhibit 2.

5 A That is the building -- apartment building at 3150

6 || south Nellis, Number 13, which is where I came in contact with

7 [|him.

8 0 Now, I'm showing you next Exhibit 3. What's depicted
9 || there in Exhibit 37

10 a That's the pathway where 1 located him.

11 Q Can you describe for the ladies and gentlemen of the

12 || jury where you first came into contact with the Defendant on this

13 | photo? And if you actually touch up on that screen, it'll mark on

14 {| it, so vou can kind of draw the path.
15 THE COURT: With your finger, you <an --
16 THE WITNESS: It was actually in this vicinity right here.

17 ||BY MS. SUDANO:

- 18 Q Was that where you first saw the Defendant?
19 A No, that's where I came in contact with him,
20 Q Okay. So where was the Defendant when you initially

21 || saw him?

22 ||can you see on this photo?

23 A No, you cannot,

24 G I'm showing you State's Exhibit 13, Do you recognize

26 || just generally what's depicted ingfhat?
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A Yes.

Q Is that the Oasis Meadows apartment complex?
A It is.
Q Just generally, where did you come into contact with

the Defendant, what area of this complex? ‘It's upside down. This
is upside down. There we go. State's Exhibit 13.

A Okay. I initially -- I'm not sure of the exact
building because they all look the saﬁe at this location. But if
this were to be Building 13, I loccated him here, and then I came -
- or I ﬁisually saw him there, and I came in contact with him here
in this area.

Q S¢ can you mark on there for us the -- how did he go
around Building 13 for you to contact him? What direction was he
traveling?

Yy I was initially here in the parking lot. He =-- I saw
him. He was standing about right here. He walked up around the
building and then down.

Q Okay. Now, where in that series of events is the bush
where the cell phone was located at?

A The bush is in this corner here,

Q So the top right corner that I'm marking with my pen

right here?

A Yes, there.
Q So it was at that corner?
A Yes. 33
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Q Is that right?

A Yes.

0 I'm showing you here Exhibit 4. Is this also the back
corner of that building?

A Yes.

Q So this phote, Exhibit 4, would correspond with this

area right up in here --

A That's correct.
Q ~~- on State's Exhibit 137 That corner, the top right
corner?

I'm showing you next Exhibit 5. What's depicted in Exhibit 5?2

A The door marker for Apartment 1124,
Q What's the significance of Apartment 11247
A That's the corner apartment where the bush is located.

Just outside of.

0 Going back then to Exhibit 4, where's that doocrway
that we saw in Exhibit 5 on Exhibit 47

A That doorway is just over here.

0 _Now, the bush that the cell phone was located énd you

eventually saw .the cell phone in, is that depicted on this photo

here?
A It is.
0 Which bush are we talking about?
A It is this bush here.
0] So that bush is actuaijy around the back corner of
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this building; is that correct?
A Correct.

Q So this would've been -- well, did the Defendant
tfavel this direction when you were starting to follow him?

A I had seen him on the sovuth side of the -- or the west
side of the building. He then traveled north, and that's when he
made the east turn, is where I leost visual of him. I didn't find
him again until he had turned scuth, and he was in between the two
buildings again.

Q0 50 that east.turn that we're talking about, would that

have taken him up, on this photo, around the corner of that

building?
A Tt brings him up -=- this is where he turned south.
Q Okay. I see. So he would have actually come down

this way and then made a turn?

A He's actualiy coming from the direction the photo's
taken from.

Q Okay. So he came not from behind this building, but
he came from the building on the other side?

A Yéah, he came this way, and that's where I came in
contact with him, was over there.

Q Perfect. And when you initially saw him again, where
was he in relation to that bush?

a Where I came in contact with him.

Q Which we have depictegs here on State's Exhikit 3., So
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you first came in qontact with him in what area?

A Right. Here.

0 So the pathway and the bush we were looking at, where
are they in relation to this photo?

A The door for 1124 is here, and the bush is up here and
around the corner,

o} Now I'm going to show you State's Exhibit 7.

MS. SUDANO: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS. SUDANO:

Q What's depicted there in State's Exhibit 77
A The bush with the cell phcne.
Q aAnd then State's Exhibit 8, i1s that just a cleose-up

shot of that bush and the phone?

A Yegs. It's more detailed of the phone case.

MS. SUDANO: Court's indulqence; Let me clarify one thing
with the officer, i1f I can.
BY MS5. SUDANO:

Q On this State's Exhibit 4 -- so you've already
indicated that- the Defendant was coming from the direction of this
area -- or from the direction when the photo'was taken, and then
he makes this turn to go back past 1124; is that correct?

A That's the pathway I found him at, yes.

0 So from this pathway here back to this bush,
approximately what's the distance there?

A ‘Say_approXimately 8 feget.
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Q and when you first saw the Defendant come around that
c&rner, where was he located?

A I didn't actually see him come around the corner. I
saw him when he was on the west side of the building and then
again when he was on the east side of the building. I never saw
him on that actual pathway back there.

Q So he had already kind of completed the turn before

you came back into contact with him?

A That's correct.

MS. SUDANQO: Your Honor, no further questions.

THEE CCURT: Cross?

MR. WOOD: No questions, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Thank you very much. Apprecilate your testimony.
You can go ahead and step down, and you're excused. Thank you
agaih. All right. Check your exhibits. Make Sufe everything
you've got is admitted.

MS. SUDANO: May I approach the Clerk, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

[State Counsel and Clerk confer]

MS. SUDANC: Your Honor, i have verified with the Clerk
that all of the State's exhibits have been admitted, so with that
the State would rest.

THE COURT: Do you need a couple minutes?

MR, WOOD: We'll rest, Your Honor. I have advised him of

his rights to testify. 37
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1 THE COURT: You guys take a break for a minute. Here's

— 2 lwhat we've got to look forward te. We're geing to -- I'm going to
3 lread you the instructions of the law as it applies to this case.

4 || Then we're going to havé closing arguménts. and just to remind

5 ||yvou of how this works, being that ﬁhe State has the burden of

B ||proof, you‘ll'hear from the State twice. They'll make the initial
7 ||cleosing argument, fo;lowed by the Defense's closing argument, and
8 [|the last thing you'll hear is the State's final closing argument.
9 ||and then we will designate one of you as the alternate, and the

10 ||other 12 will take the instructions, all the exhibits and you'll
11 || retire to the jury deliberation to consider your veraict. Okay?
12 So we'll need a few minutes to sort thrcocugh and get

13 || the instructions all ironed out, and then we're gecing to wrap this

14 {lup. Okay? So we'll take a short recess., During this probably

15 | 15-minute recess -- is it going to take us longer than that to --
16 MS. SUDANC: Can we approach on this, Your Honor?
17 THE COQURT: Sure, sure.

o 18 [Bench conference-~ not transcribed]

- 19 THE COURT: We're just going to do like this. We're going

20 || tc take a lunch break. You guys will eat lunch, go relax, be back
2t ||here at 1:00 o'clock. We'll have all of the instructions ironed
22 fout, and then we'll hear the instructions and the clecsing

23 | arguments, and we'll have plenty of time this afternoon to

24 ||deliberate. Right?

25 So if it appears that Jg;have moved things along in an
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effort te make sure we don't waste any time, I want you to
understand something, We're got a (indiscernible). We're in no
hurry. fou guys take your time. Okay? So you'll do a thorough
examination of the evidence and deliberate thoroughly and don't
feel as though there's any kind of pressure or concern. Okay?
All right.

We're going to take an hour and half lunch break. It's
11:00 [sic] o'clock. You've got to be back here by 1:00 o'clock,
and we will put this thing to rest. Okay?

During this next hour and a half lunch break, I will
admonish the jury not converse of_discuss this trial with
yourselves or anyone else on any subject connected with anything
in this trial. Don't watch, listen or read any reports or
commentary regarding this trial through any madium of information
-— it means radic, television, newspapers or internet -- and don't
form or express any opinions on any subject connected or related
to this trial until such time this case has been finally submitted
to you, which will be real soon. Okay? 211 right. Go on lunch
break. Relax.

THE MARSHAL: You can leave everything and follow me.
THE COURT: Yeah. You can leave -- you can leave everything
right there.
[Jury exits the courtrocm for lunch break at 11:30 a.m.]
[out of the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: We outside the pgesence of the jury. All right.
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Now, are we ready to start going through these instructions right
now-?

M3, SPELLS: Yes.

MS. SUDANO: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, let's go ahead and see where we are.

MS. SPELLS: We need to get it on the record.

THE COURT: Oh, not initially, but let's -- let's just
informally go thrcugh the instructions to see where we are before
we go on the record. Okay?

MS. SPELLS: Ckay.

THE  COURT: -As far as the instructions --

MS. SPELLS: Oh, Are they in the jury room?

THE COURT: I don't know.

MS. SPELLS: They go to the jury room if you --

[Counsel confer]

THE COURT: Listen, when we get these instructions settled -

(Settling of Jury Instructions begin - not trangcribed]

THE COURT: We have -- does the State have a set of
Ingstructions 1 through 227

MS. SUDANOC: Yes, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: .Does the State have any objections tc any of
the 1 through 22 instructions?

MS, SUDANO;: I do, Your Honcr. Give me a moment tc find

where it ended up in here. My opgtruct -- or my objection is
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going to start -- I've got actually twe. The first one is going
to be Instruction Number 10, the language in the third paragraph:
"The crime of larceny from the person is restricted to
pickpocketé, purse snatchers, jewel abstractors” and the like.

The State did provide the Court and Defense with a copy of an =~=-
of a case from 1906 out of California -- thét was State v. Stoffer
-- that had that language "restricted to pickpockets, purse
snatchers, Jewel abstractors and like categories of criminal

of fenses." However that case then went on te describe crimes that
are related to deceit -=- or I believe it was stealth or fraud was
the language that they used.

It appears that the Taro case that's been relied on by
both parties took that language, but didn't take the part that
said it was fraud until I feel like this instruction is not a
complete and accurate depictign and eliminates the -- the elements
of the fraud instruction. I know that that has been overruled,
but T did just want to make that objection.

THE COURT: Okav.

MS. SUDANO: And then the other uvne was the two‘—— the two
reasconable interpretations instruction.

THE COURT: I think you're actuvally referring to 17, but we
didn't use the two reasonable interpretatioﬁs. We used 17, I
think,

MS. SUDANQ: There it is. So that is the modified two

reascnable conclusions. That wastodified based on the
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unpublished order and Supernovich from September of this past
year. I recegnize that --

THE COURT: What number?

MS. SUDANO: I'm on Instruction 17.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead.

MS. SUDANG: Thank Your Honor. I do recognize that the
Nevada Suprgme Court had said that this is a correct instruction
of the law. It's nct misleading or confusing. However, I do
think that it's misleading and potentially confusing in this
particular case because we don't have an issue with circumstantial
evidence. The real issue is whether or not the taking of the
phone in this case constitutes a larceny from the perscon. So I
think that in this particular case, zll this is going to do is
potentially confuse the jury.

THE CQURT: Confused me.

MS. SUDANC: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Does the State have any instructions that were
of fered and not given?

MS. SUDANO: Not that I need to put on the record, No,
Your Honor,.

THE COURT: Okay. Does the Defense have a set of
instructions numbered 1 through 227

MS, SPRLLS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And does the Defense have any cobjections to

Instructions 1 through 227 42
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MR. WOOD: Just briefly, Your Honor. First, Instruction
Number 15: "A larceny victim's consent to a taking is valid only
if that consent is freely and unconditionally given. Consent.
obtained by force, arrest or fraud is ineffective.” My objection
—~ and we made these arguments outside off the record, but juét to
reiterate, the State had cited to the Barrett case from Nevada
dealing with burglary and felonious intent. Felonious intent is
one of the elements of burglary. I objected based on that.

also, the other case the State cited was People v.
Wynn, a California case that is no longer good law in California
for at least one point of law. As such, I didn't == I believe
it's confusing to the jury, and I don't know that it's necessary
in this case, and sc I'm objecting to that one.

and just for purposes of making sure that there's a
full record, can I respond to the State's objections?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. WOOD: As the State’s Instruction Number 10 -- or the
instruction Number 10 that's being given, the State argued that it
was not completed. They offered the Stoffer case from California
from 1906. I believe the statement that is presented to the
Court, in the way that it is here nbw, is the correct statement.
The inclusion that the State tried to include of things being
attached and giving various examples, that was never mentioned
until -- which is a Nevada case. It's not mentioned in any of the

statutes. So I believe the versipp that is being given to the
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Jury 1s the correct version.

and as to, I believe, 17, this was my alternative that I had

offered in response to one that -- the earlier one that just had
the -- not the full language of this instruction right now, but I

understand the Court's position regarding Supernovich. So we'll
just leave it at that. I'll submif it.

THE COURT: All right. Does the Defense have any
instructions of law that were not given?

MR. WOOD: I don't believe so, Your Honor.

THE COURT: The ones that weren't agreed to are stipulated
to.

MR. WOOD: That's correct.

THE COURT: All right. Bring in the jury.

THE MARSHAL: Do you want me to put cut --

THE COURT: Plan just to put them on thelr chairs.

[Pause]
[Jury enters the courtroom ét 2:00 p.m. |

THE COURT: Everyone have a seat,'please. Will the parties
stipulate to the presence of the jury?

MR. WOOD: We will,

MS. SUDANC: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Everybedy's got a copy of the
instructions. 1I've got the original right here. It'll be signed
and you'll take it with you, but you're also going to take your

own copies back to the deliberatipp room. And you can follow
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alongAas I read through the instructions, but as important, when
we have our closing arguments, many of the points that will be
raised during the process of closing arguments will address
specific instructibns.

| T encourage you to make notes on your set of
instructions wﬁen a particular instruction is being pointed and
discussed in closing arguments. You will be able to take vyour set
of instructions back to deliberats., If you have notes on them, I
want you to have them available for it. Okay? All right.

So what happens now is I read for the record the
instructions that you all have in front of you, and then we will
have our closing arguments by counsel. Then ycu'll go deliberate.
All right.

[Jury inétructions read to the jury - not transcribed]
THE COURT: Ready?
MS. SUDANO: Yes, Your Henor.
STATE'S CLOSING ARGUMENT
BY MS. SUDANO: |

Ladies and gentlemen, there's nc one way to steal
things. Throughout the course of this trial you heard about purse
snatchings. You were instructed about jewel abstractors and
pickpockets. one of the officers was asked about a robbery. But
I told you at the very beginning of this case that this is a
simple case. What you have here is a larceny from the person.

Now, in every single ggiminal case the State has to
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prove two things to you beyond a reasonable decubt. First the

State has to prové ﬁhat the crime charged was committed, and,

second, we have Lo prove that the Defendant was the person who
committed the crime.

Necw, in this particular case, there's really no doubt
that Gabriel Ibarra is the person who committed the crime here.

So how do.we know that? The victim identified the Defendant as
the person who took her phone. The phone was located less than 8
feet away from the area where the Defendant is uvltimately stop?ed
by police. Now, that's after he steps out of view of the officer.
If you remember Officer Kunz from this morning, he said that he
initially saw the Defendant. The Defendantlwent around the corner
0of the building, and then as he's coming back, that's when he
finally makes contact with the officers. They go back around the
corner of that building again, and in the bush right there, less
than 8 feet away, is where the Defendant stashed the phone.

Now, you also have that the officers are following the
location of this phone, right? They've got this Track My iPhone
app that they're wusing, and they getting updated information
relayed to them, and they are able to use that information, and it
takes them straight to the Defendant. Now, even after the
Defendant has been stopped by cfficers, the victim comes back
again and she identifies the Defendant again and says, yep, that's
the person. |

So right here we've ggpf this phone where it ended up
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in that bush 1esé than 8 feet away from where the Defendant is
uwitimately found by the police. So, again, there's really no
dispute that the Defendant is the person that we're talking about
in this particular case. Instead, what we nead to focus on 1s
whether or not the crime that was charged was committed, and it
was, ladies and gentlemen.

The crime that we have here is a larceny from the
person. In every case, every criminal charge, there's a certain
element that the State has to prove to you beyond a reasonable
doubt. So a larceny from the person, the State has to prove that
under circumstances not amounting to a robbery, a person who takes
money, property or a thing of value from the person of another
without her consent and with the intent to steal or appropriate
that property to his own use.

So let's break those down. The first one ig under
circumstances not amounting to robbery. Now, you already heard
that what happened in this case isn't a robbery, but you first
have to understand what a robbery is to know that. So robbery is
the uniawful taking of personal property from the person of
ancther or in his presence, against hislwill, so that part's
pretty much the same, but the part that's different here is "by
means of force or violence or fear of injury." And that can be
immediate or future to his person or property.

3o we know what happened here isn't a robbery, so we

can't have that force, violence oy, fear of injury. 3o, instead,
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the property has to be taken in another way. So¢ you heard an
example. You heard the victim was questioned -- weil, the
Defendant didn't threatén you. He didn't pull out a weapon. You
weren't scared at all when you gave up the property, right? But
if any of those things had happened, this woﬁld be a robbery
instead of a larceny from the person., So what we need to look‘at
is circumstances where there's no ferce or no violence.

So how do you get somebody's property away from them
without using force or violence? You have to use some other
means. Maybe it's stealth. Maybe you don’t know that they're
taking the property. Maybe it's deception where you don't think
that they're actually going to take the property. Or maybe it's
some'sort of different thought. It can be any of those ways,. but
it can't be by force.

So the next element.is "that a person takes money,
property or thing of value." 30 what's our thing of value in this
particular case? It's that iPhone 5 8. The other important thing
to remember in a larceny from the person, there's no reguirement
that the phone has a specific value. The victim testified that it
did have-a value. She said she purchased it just a couple months
before this for, she said, four or $500. She couldn't remember.
5o it does have a value. We know that. There's no minimum value
that needs to be shown for this to be a larceny from the person.

So the next requirement is that the taking has to be

from the person of another. S0 ifgactually has to be on their
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person, So it's on or attached to the victim's'person, carried or
held by the victim, so in the victim's hand, in anticipation if
the property is taken from immediate possesged -~ excuse me,
present --

MR. WOOD: Objection, Your Honor. Can we approach?

THE COURT: Sure.

[Bench conference -- not transcribed]

MS. SUDANO: So as I was saying, ladies and gentlemen, in
order to constitute a larceny from the person, the property
actually has to be taken from the person of another. So that's
property that's on or attached to the victim or carried or held by
the victim, and that includes in the wvictim's hand. It's
insufficient if the property is taken from the presence of the
victim or their construction possession.

So what larceny from the person is really meant to
punish and what is really meant (indiscernible) 2:22:49 8% is this
idea that properties taken from the person of another. It's not
meant to punish property that's abandoned. 5o if somebody has
just left a phone on a bus stop and walked away from it, that
certainly wouldn’t be a larceny from the person.

Now, without her consent is the next element. So the
victim can't consent to the taking because then it doesn't
constitute a wrongful act. But you have an instruction, ladies
and gentlemen, that tells you that a larceny victim's consent,

you're thinking, is valid only if,g4t's given freely and
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unconditionally. So content -- or, excuse me, consent obtained by
force, duress or fraud is ineffective.

5o what do we know about the consent here? Evangelia
Mantikas got up on the stand and she told you all that she
consented to the Defendant making one call. She didn't consent Lo
him taking off and running away with the phone. She didn’t’
consent to him having that phone permanently. So she didn't
consent to what actually happened in this case. The only reason
she gave over her phone was under this false impression and this
iuse that thé Defendant created that he was going to make a phone
call. So when that turned out to not be what he intended to do,
her consent wasn't freely given. So the taking in this case
occurred without Evangelia Mantikas giving consent.

Now, we also have to be able to show that the
Defendant in this case intended to steal or appropriate that phone
for his own use. So how do we know he intended to appropriate it
for his own use? He runs off with that phone, right? The victim
is following after him, and hé loses her inside of an apartment
complex. She's ngt able to find him anymore. He does that after
ne sees her following him as he's walking away with the property.

So once he sees that she's trying to pursue him,

presumably in an attempt to get her property back, he takes off
running. When she gets that phone back just a couple of hours
later, the number is changed. What does she tell you abkout that

number? That number is the same gymber that she dialed befcre.
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Now, we also know that there's an intent to steal in
this case. So the Defendant had the intent to steal that phone
before he ever got it into his hands, she has a five-minute talk
before the Defendant gets the phone. So for about five minutes,
as Evangelia Mantikas has testified, the Defendant is sitting next
to her. He asks at one point to borrow the phone. She doesn't
hear the entire number, so she doesn't give him the phone at that
point. She goes back to texting, hoping maybe he'll forget about
asking her about the phone.

During this time he's following up with her. He's
asking, hey, what kind of phone is that? ©Oh, is that an iPhone 47
No, it's an iPhone 5 $. And he asks her once again to borrow that
phone after that five-minute conversation, and he asks the victim
to dial his number. Right? So if he's asking her to dial a
number and then that phone number is later switched over and takes
control over Evangelia's phone, it's a reascnable inference that
that number is his number.

S0 why would he want to call his own number? He'd
wWant to call his own number because that's how he's trying to get
the phone out of her possession. He's not trying to call somebody
for a ride. He's not trying to call his friends to meet up. He's
not trying to call anybody. He's just trying to get that phone
out of her possession.

Now, what else do we know? So he sits there with her

for five minutes trying to get that phone, and then what does she
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say? She says as soon he gets it, within just mere seconds, he
gswitches it frbm hand that's closest to her to the other side of
his body so it's further away from'her. As he;s doing that, he's
getting up from the bench at the bus stop and he's walking away.
So within mere seconds of him getting that phone into his
possession, after trying for five minutes tO get it, he takes off
with it. So we can show -- we have shown beyond a reasonable
doubt, ladies and gentlemen, that before the Defendant ever had
that phone, he intended to still it.

Now, you also have an instructicn on the Amendment,
the main focus of a larceny from the person. Tt's an instruction
that tells you that it's limited to crimes such as purse.
snatching, pickpocketing, jewel abstracting and the like.

Now, as I mentioned earlier, there can't be any force
in these takings, so you have to use something cther than the
force. You have to use fraud, vou have to use stealth, you have
to use deception because.that's the only way that you're going to
get property off of somebody's person without the use of force.

So the main concern in the larceny from thé person statute is that
the perscn of another has been violated, and their privacy
directly invaded.

Now, the important part about this statute -- or about
this inception that you've got here is that it's limited to crimes
such as these three things and the like, So this isn't an

exclusive list, ladies and gentlegen. That's just the class of
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crimes that we're looking at here.

5o ask yourselves whether or not what happened in this
particular case is any less invasive of the victim's privacy than
having her purse taken or her wallet stolen from her pocket. 1
would submit to you, ladies and gentlemen, that it's not. The
Defendant sat by her for five minutes right in that seat right
next to her, asking her questions about her life and trying to get
that phone from her.

Now, in summary, the Defendant devises this ruse prior
to gaining control over that phone. So the entire time he's
sitting there with her, he's trying to gain access to this phone.
The phone is on the victim's person. Tt's in her hand. ©She's
holding and carrying it at the time of this ruse. Right?

She says that when the Defendant first approaches her,
she's sitting at the bus stop. She's texting, using her phone.
The ruse is the only way that the Defendant gets the phone off of
the victim's person. But for that ruse and that trick to get the
phone by telling her that he's trying to make this phone conver -~-
or maybe this phone call, he's not going to get the property off
of her person.

So, ladies and gentlemen, the Defendant in this case
is guilty of larceny from the person. When you all go back to
deliberate, the State is going to ask that you sc find. Thank
you.

THE CCURT: Defense closingg
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DEFENSE CLOSING ARGUMEN?

BY MR. WOOD:

Thank you for bearing with us, ladies and gentlemen.
We've tried to make this as painless and tried not to waste
anybody's time. The State asked you, well, how do you know who
committed the crime? I'll tell vou how. It's because we told you
that's who did it.

We told you from the very opening of this case that
a cﬁime had been committed and that Gabriel had committed that
crime. But we also told you that that crime is not iarceny from
the person. If you all remember the game of Clue, you often had
three cards.  You had the whe, you had the where and you had the
with what. We told you all of those. The only thing we don't
kxnow what the crime was. You can't have a murder if nc one has
been killed Well
Now, I didn't bring a PowerPoint for you guys CO
watch, but I did a friend. Your Honor, can I7
THE COURT: Sure.
MR, WOOD: 1I'll be right back.
[Mr. Wood exits the courtroom]
[Pause]
[Mr. Wood reenters the courtroom]
DEFENSE CLOSING [CONTINUED]

BY MR. ﬁOOD:

This is my friend, yog4know, I'm going to show you
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1 {|guys something, and I want you tec pay attention, and you're going

— 2 ||to understand why it's important later on. I've got somebody
3 lhere, and I reach in and pull out a pen or a tie -- well, some
4 ||money and (indiscernible). I want you to think about what I just

77777 5 ||did beéause it's going to make sense in a few minutes.
6 Now, for this to make éense, I want tc go over scme of
7 |{these instructicns that you;re going to be given -- you've already
8 ‘been given., You're going to take them back with you. First

9 ||you've got your Instruction Number 9. This is the one thét says:
10 ||Every person under circumstances not amounting to robbery with

1 |l intent to steal take from the person of another." That's the

12 || important one. That’s what's required for our larceny from the

13 ||person. It's got to be from that person.

E 14 And if you'll look at Number 10, there's a little more

15 ||guidance there. It tells you: "The offense is not committed if

16 || the property is taken from their immediate presence, well-

i 17 § constructed control or possession.”™ It further says: "Taking

18 || from the person of another is an essential element. The crime

19 || requires more than a taking in someone's presence. The statements
20 || prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant committed a

21 || 1arceny from the person of another is strictly to pickpockets,

22 || purse snatchers, jewel abstractors and the like." And this is the
23 ||part that I really want you to focus on when yoﬁ go to the back.
24 || "The gravity of the offense, the larceny from the person, is that

25 || the person of another has been vipdated and her privacy directly
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invaded."

Now, I showed you how I was taking things from this
individual. There's a difference. I a5k scmeone to borrow their
phone, and they had that pheone to me. We're'not making contact;
we're passing something between the two of us. But if I reach in
around their shoulders and I 1ift out a pen, I'm invading the
privacy of another. If I go to the back and 1lift a wallet for
money, I'm getting into an area where people don't want to be
touched, where people don't want to be tampered with. You may not
know that you've been pickpocketed. There's a difference because
when that actually happens and realize that someone has been in
your personal space and has touched your body without your
permission, that person's body has been violated. Their privacy
has been invaded. You reach in the front and lift out that
phone. No different. Think about whers these things are taken
from. Think about how that would appear.

Now, I know we have a lot of people involved with
casinos in this town. There's a lot of people that deal with
casincs, sco I like to use a little bit of casino references. The
State is like the house. They have all the cards. They set
things up; they play the game. But the important thing is, is the
State has to follow the rules. They're their rules, and they have
to follow them just like everybody else.

If the State 1is goihg to play & hand one way, they

have to follow house rules. The gfate can't chose tc hit on an 18
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Jjust because they know someone else has a 21. That's not house
ruiles. You have to folleow the rules. The State is held to that
exact same burden, and in that case, you've got the law which
tells you exactly what the house rules are here.

Now, I'm going to show you guys Instruction Number 1.
"Larceny is the stealing, taking and carrying away." Someone
hands me their phone, and I turn and walk away, and I run. I'm
stealing that phone and taking_that phone. I am carrying it away
from the person, from -- carrying away other perscnal goods or
property of another. I am depriving them of their phone.

Now, you heard testimony from Mantikas. She paid 400
to $500 for that phone., We know the value of the phone. It was
less than 650. And you're told right here: "If the property
taken is valued less than 650, nor taken from the person of the
victim,™ that's a petit larceny. The Stafe doesn't get to change

the rules just because they want something higher. They have to

‘follow the exact same rules as everybody else.

Now, when we were questioning everybody, the Judge
asked you, can you follow the law even if you don't agree with it?
It's very important in this case. You may not feel gocd about
this. I'm ndt saying that Gabriel didn't do this. I'm saying he
didn't do a larceny from,thé person., He did not invade the |
privacy. He did not violate or set up another. What he did was
he tock a phone, it was handed to him, He did not make any

contact with that victim, and he Epok off and ran., It's a crime
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we're -- and we've been asking you from the beginning, hold him
respongible for that crime. I'm not saying that he didn't do
something, but he didn't do a larceny from the person.

Now, I also want to show you guys -- and this will be
the last I deal with the instructions because I know they're
really boring. This one's important as well, though. This is
Instruction 13. It says: "You shall find the Defendant guilty of
larceny from the person if you believe the State has proven that
beyond a reasonable doubt. When a person is accused of committing
a particular crime and at the same time and by the same conduct
may have committed another offense of 1esser/greater degree, the
latter is with respect to the former or lesser included offense.”

If you're not satisfied that the Defendant is guilty
of the offense charged: "Larceny from the perscon, he may have,
however, become guilty of any lesser included offénse if the
evidence is sufficient to establish guilt." It says here: "You
are instructed that peti£ larceny is a lesser included offense of
larceny from the person.”

It's a game of Clue, folks. I've opened the
packet. You know what the cards are. You know who did it. You
know what happened. You know how it was done, and you also know
what crime was committed because we know nothing was done with
thig. Nothing was deone with Ms. Mantika;s privacy, her -- she

wasn't —-- her body wasn't violated. Her privacy wasn't invaded.

| That didn't occur in this case. Hpld him responsible for the
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crime that did take place. Make the State follow the rules.
There's a big difference, folks.
MR. WOOD: Can I borrow your phone?
MS. SPELLS: Sure. Let me put the number in for you.
DEFENSE CLOSING ARGUMENT (CONTINUED)
BY MR. WOOD:

That was the testimony that tcok place. You were all
witness to it. Nothing happened to Ms. Mantika except her phone
was taken. She passed it to him. She felt foolish for doing it.
He committed a crime. It's larceny, petit larceny. Fine him
gquilty of the crime that he's been charged with. Thank you.

THE COURT: .Counsel.
[Pause]
STATE'S REBUTTAL CLOSING ARGUMENT
BY MS. SUDANO:

Now, ladies and gentlemen, let's start out with the
instruction here. This is Instruction Number 1, the very first
instruction in your packet.

Now, this says: "That regardless of what your opinion is as to
what the law ought to be, you assigned and you took an cath, and
you're bound by that oath to follow the law, the instructicns that
were given to vou.,"

Now, this isn't a case or a plan Lo pass money or the
nouse is changing the rules. No. This is a case where there's an

actual victim of the actual crimesef larceny from the person.
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We're not stretching the rules or trying to make this fit where it
doesn't, |

Now we move to Instruction Number 10. This tells you
that: "The property, when it's taken, has to be at some -- in
some way actually upon or attach to the persbn or carried or held
in their actual physical poséession." Now, the demonstration of
counsel, keep that in mind. That's not actually evidence. You
have an instruction that says that the arguments of counsel aren't
your evidence. Your evidence is what vyou heard from the witnesses
in this particular case. Sc that was a nice demonstration, but
that's not your evidence.

The same with taking the phdéne and walking out of the
room. Also not your evidence. You know that that‘é net how it
went down because that's now how the witnesses told you 1t went
down.

Now, counsel pointed it this way and said, well, when
you're actualiy taking property from somebody else, you're
reaching into the pockets and you're taking money from them.
You're taking a phone or you're sneaking something out without
them knowiﬁg about it. Well, ask yourself again, ladies and
géntlemen, if what happened in this case is any less volatile of
Ms. Mantikas' privacy than what happeqed there,

I would submit to you, ladies and gentlemen, that it's
not. This instruction, Instruction Number 10, tells you that the

property has to be carried or helg;in the actual possession, among

ROUGE DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibarra
C-15-308774-1

433




10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

29

the other things that it says up there. So there's no requiremsnt
that the property has to be under clothing oka concealedrin some
way. There's no requirement that the individual actually has to
make physical skin-to-skin contact with the victim in order for a
larceny from the person to ocour.

I would submitragain, ladies and gentlemen, that in a
case of a good pickpocket or somebody that's done it many times
before, they're not going to have any more contact with the wvictim
than the Defendant in this case did, with Evangelia Mantikas. No,
éhe's nolding the phone, and he devises this ruse to get the phone
away from her. That is sufficient, ladies and gentlemen. The
phone is on her person. It's in her possession., She's holding it
and using it.

Again, I would hold you to this instruction and
ask you, where in there it says that there actually has to be
clothing removed or anything iike that. No, it just says that the
person -- that the property has to be attached or in some way in
the possession of the victim, which it was in this particular
case.

Now, you also have the instruction that tells you =--
if T can find it. It's further down on this one. This is still
within Instruction Number 10. It says: "The offense of larceny
from the person requires an actual taking -from the person of
another, if the person of-another has been viOlatéd and their

privacy has been directly invadedg " Now, in this case apart
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from a pickpocketing or a purse snatching, the victim in this
particular case is immediately away of what's going on.

Now, sometimes, when you've got somebody that's a
victim of‘a pickpocket -- égain, if it's a good pickpocket, they
ﬁight not even know right away. The victim here knows. She knows
immediately that her person has been violated; that the Defendant
who's sitting there right next to her for five minutes, leaning
over her shoulder, asking about the phone, that as soon as he gets
it, he takes off with it. So she immediately knows. Her privacy
and her person were violated in this case, ladies and gentlemen.

Now, again, I would submit to you that this
demonstration you saw where the two Defénse counsels handed a
pheone over, that's not how it actually happened in this case.
You're to be guided by the testimony of the witnesses as you
rémeﬁber it about what actually happened in this case.

Now, when you go back intc that jury deliberation
room, I'm not going to put this instruction up there, but it's the
instruction on common sense. 1t says: "You're to be guided by
yéur common sense as everyday men and women. You can't check yoﬁr
common sense at the door when you go back into that deliberation
room to reach your verdict in this case. 1 assure you that if vyou
rely on that common sense, you'll come back and find the
Defendant, Gabriel Ibarra, guilty of laréeny from the person.
Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, counggl. Who all gets sworn to take
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1 t{the -~
— 2 ||you are about to commence the process of deliberation. Before you
3 ||do, we need to swear in the marshal to take charge of the jury

4 ||during the course of your deliberations. S50 ralse your right

5 ||hand.

8 {Coﬁrt and Clerk confer]

7 {The Marshal is given the oath by the Clerk]
8 THE COURT: Emilio, stay right there. You're fhe

9 ||alternate, and we'll have some special instructions for you. The
10 || rest of you, go with J.R. Bring your notebooks, bring your set of

11 || instructions.

12 [Jury exits courtroom to deliberate at 2:49 p.m.]
13 [Out of the presence of the jury]
14 THE COURT: Okay. Emilic, here's -- here's how this

15 ||works. You guys relax a minute. You're the designated alternate
16 ||juror in this matter. You're not going to have to stick around

17 || the courthouse, but you need to stick around where you can be down

18 |lhere on short notice. If something happens to somebody during the
19 éourse of deliberations, we'll give you a call., We need you to

20 || exchange contact information, that if something was to happen to
21 ||you, you need to call and let us know if you —-- for some reason

22 |fyou're incapacitated.

23 The same admonishment that I've been giving the jury,
24 || every time we take a break, still applies. So until you're either

25 ||been called to come down and sit fpr somebody that should become
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disabled in some fashion and unable to finish service, jury

service, or, alternatively, you'll get a call saying that the jury

reached a verdict, and you're free at that point to discuss the
case however you choose to. So that's what you'll be locking for.

And we'll call you aﬂd tell you that the jury's coming
in, and if you want to come down -- I mean, you don't have to
stick around, but if you're somewhere close and you want to come
down, we certainly will let you sif in with the jury when they
come back. That's kind of choice; it's up to you. Okay?

So, Michelle, has been sworn in, and she's goilng to
exchange information with you, and she'll be who will be
contacting you,_either you got to come down and serve or you're
discharged. Okay?

ALTERNATE NUMBER 1: Okay.

THE CQURT: Thank you. Might be the last time I get to see
you, so I want to tell you how mucﬁ I appreciate the -- I know it
wasn't long, but I can tell you what, you were a good group. You
guys paid close attention. You did everything we asked you to do,
and I appreciate -- we always appreciate your jury service. Thank
you very much.

Okay, guys. Don't go far. We know how to get a hold
of everybody. You got everything?

THE CLERK: Yes.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. SUDANO: Thank you. 64
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[Pause in proceedings]
THE CQURT: All rigﬁt. We're on the record?
THE CQURT RECORDER: Yes.
THE COURT: Okay. We are outside the preseﬁce of the jury.
Does anybody have anything to address before I bring them in?
MS. SUDANO: Not from the State, Your Honor.
MS. SPELLS: None, Your Honor.
THE COQURT: Okay.
[Pause]
[Jury enters the courtroom after deliberation at
4:19 p.m.] |
THE MARSHAL: All present, Your Honor,
THE COURT: Everybody, please have a seat. Will the parties
stipulate to the presence of the jury?
MS. SULDANO: Yes.
MS., SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Very good. So has the jury selected a
foreperson?
THE FOREPERSON: Yes,
THE COURT: And who would that be?
- THE FOREPERSON: Baumer,
THE COURT: BRaumer. So, Mr. Baumer, has the jury reached a
verdict in this matter? |
THE FOREPERSON: We have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Would you hand ghe J.R. the verdict form,
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please.
[Pause]
THE COURT: I'm going to have the clerk read into the record
the verdict. Would the Defendant please stand. |
THE CLERK: District Court, Clark County, Nevada, State of
Nevada, Plaintiff versus Gabriel Ibarra, Defendant. Case Number
¢308774, Department 17,

Verdict: We, the jury, in the above-entitled case,
find the Defendant, Gabriel Ibarra, as follows:

Count 1, larceny from the person, guilty of larceny
from the person. Signed on this 20th day of Octcber by the jury
foreperson.

Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, is this verdict, so
say you one, so say you all?

THE JURY ({(en masse) : Yes.

THE COURT: Please have a seat. Would you like the jury
polled?

MR. WQOD: Yes, please, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Qkay.

THE CLERK: Juror Number 1, is this your verdict as read?

JURCR NUMBER 1: Yes.

THE CLERK: Juror Number 2, is this your verdict as read?

JUROR NUMBER 2: Yes.

THE CLERK: Juror Number 3, is this your verdict as read?

JURCR NUMBER 3: Yes. 66
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read?

THE CLERK:
JUROR NUMBER
THE CLERK:
JURCR NUMBER
THE CLERK:
JUROR NUMBER
THE CLERK:
JUROR NUMBER
THE CLEREK:

JURCR NUMBER

.THE CLERK:

JUROR NUMBER

THE CLERK:

JURCR NUMBER

THE CLERK:

JUROR NUMBER

THE CLERK:

JURCR NUMBER

THE CQURT:

Juror Number
4: Yes.
Juror Number
5: Yes.
Jurcr Number
6: Yes.
Juror Number
7: Yes.
Juror Number
8: Yes.
Juror Number

9: Yes.

Juror Number 10,

10: Yes.

Juror Number 11,

11: Yes.

is

is

is

is

is

is

is this your verdict as read?

is this your verdict as read?

this

this

this

this

this

this

your

your

your

your

your

your

verdict

verdict

verdict

vordict

verdict

verdict

a8

as

as

as

as

as

read?

read?

read?

read?

read?

read?

And Juror Number 12, is this your verdict as

12: Yes.

from your duties as a jury in this case.

Before I do, I want to

reiterate what I told you yesterday when we first started this

process.

What you guys have just gone through is what separates

Ladies and gentlemen, I'm about to discharge you

from the rest of the world because we can call upon folks like you

who are willing to sacrifice theig, time to come down and perform,
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no matter how short a case is, no matter how simplistic it ﬁiqht
seem, it's always a tough call. It is a never an easy call. And
what you guys have done is incredibly remarkable for everybody,
but for you guys, you've been a great jury. You'ﬁe been -- even
though it's only been a couple days, but you've been here on time.
You all paid close atteﬁtion to what was ¢going on. You fellowed
the instructions, it certainly appears to be. You're all entitled
to an accommodation ag far as I'm concerned. You've all gone
above and beyond the call. I cannot tell you on kehalf of myself
and the rest of the folks here in the Eighth Judicial District how
much we appreciate your jury service.

So from this point on, the admenishment about not
talking about_the case no longer applies. You are free to talk to
anybody about anything you want to talk to them that has td do
with the case. At the same time, you don't have to. You den't
have to talk to anybody.

and I always throw in, if somebody pesters you about
talking about this case and you don't want to talk about it, you
call the office and I'1ll handle them. All righty?

So now they'll be waiting for you guys downstairs at
the 3rd Floor Jury Service -- Jury Commissioner's office, so go on
down and get -- I think you'll get that big check they pay vyou,
what you've been waiting for.

All right? Thank you, guys, very much appreciate it.

THE MARSHAL: All rise for ghe jury.
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[Jury exits the courtroom after verdict at 4:25 p.m.]
[Out of the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Now we're outside the presence of the jury.

Have a seat for a second here. All right. First thing, the
Defendant's going to be remanded in custody on this case. If he's
not, I think he already is. 1Isn't he?

MR, WOOD: Yes,

THE COURT: Okay. What is his custody status overall? Does
he have other matters pending?

MR. WOCD: No.

THE CCURT: Okay. So we need a sentencing date.

THE CLERK: On December 10th, 8:30.

THE CQURT: December 10th at 8:30.

MS. SUDANO: And, Your Honor, was he remanded without bail?

THE COURT: He's remanded without bail.

MS. SUDANO: Thank you.

THE COURT: When we put it on a bail hearing, we're setting
it again. I don't know if Judge Villani has already had cne or
not. If you want to entertain at least & motion, but at the
present time, it's just set with no bail.

Okay?

MR, WOOD: Judge, just for record purposes, you had a chance
to hear the testimony. I think I'd be making an oral motion at
this point for a judgment notwithstanding the verdict.

THE COQURT: Just relying opgan oral motion, it is denied.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
State of Nevada v. Gabriel Ibarra
C-15-308774-1

442




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

I think the evidence was sufficient support the verdict. Although
I'1]l have to say, you guys made it a real interesting case out of
what was probably an open-and- shut case. All right. Like I
said, the evidence was pretty strohg. I don't think there's a
chance in the world that somebody's going to find this evidence
insufficient. I think it was a -- they didn't seem to have toc
much trouble wrestling with it.

So I do want to say that you guys did an excellent job
for a case that, you know -- I mean, how unusual it probably went
to trial, but you guys did a great job, and you certainly had a
legitimate issue that you -- you rode that horse quite a ways.

You did a great job. Following those instructions was a little
rough, but that's all right. You guys have a good evening.

MR. WOOD: You, too, Your Honor.

MS. SPELLS: Thank Your Honor.

MS, SUDANO: Thank you for your patience with us and --

[Proceeding concluded at 4:1% p.m‘]
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audio-visual recording of the proceeding in the above entitled case
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2015

[Proceeding commenced at 8:48 a.m.]

THE COURT: Motion for O.R. or bail reduction. Defendant is
present in custody.

MR. WOOD: Good morning, Your Honor. Jeremy Wood on his
behalf. Just really briefly I'd like to add a few things that
weren’t in the motion. |

Obviously Your Honor was away at T think judicial college
or when the trial actualiy took place, but the testimony is that
essentially -- and we had.done this on a writ of habeas corpus as
well, so the Court was familiar with the issue. She handed over
her phone and then the Defendant turned and ran.

THE COURT: I remember it. Yes.

MR. WOOD: My -- my indication is that he doesn’t have & great
criminal history. He’s got one prior felony. Given the non-
violent nature of this, yes, he waé adiudicated guilty by the -- by
the jury trial. But I think he's gtill a good candidate for
possibly probation. Given that, I did file the motion for him to
try and get out and prove to the Court, you know, at the time of
sentencing that he can be monitored on probation.

So, non-violent, limited crimina; history. He does have
ties to the community, Your Honor, as I listed in the motion. So
I'11 submit it on that.

THE COURT: Doesn’t he have a prior battery deadly weapon

2
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case, three FTA’g --

MR. WOOD: That’s correct.

THE COURT: -- and in a prior case he was revoked from
probation for absconding.

MR. THOMAN: Yes, Your Honor. And I believe that’s all
detailed in the State’s response submitted.

MR. WOOD: That’s correct,

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Wood, I don’t think that showing a
good track record doesn’t mean you won't get probation, sir. It’s
just right now your record ddgsn’t shoﬁ that you’re really going to
follow through. 1711 hear from you at the time of sentencing,
okay.

I'm going to deny the motion for the reasons just set
foxrth. Thank you.

[Proceeding concluded at 8:50 a.m.]
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; THURSDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2015

[Proceeding commenced at 10:12 a.m.]

THE COURT: Ibarfa, it’s time set for sentencing. Public
Defender case. Mr. Ibarra is present in custody. Any reason we
can"t go forward today?

MR. WOOD: No, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Defendant is hereby adjudged guilty of larceny
from the person., Argument by the State?

MS. SUDANO: Thank you, Your Honor. The State’s gbing to be
asking for a 14 to 48 month sentence on this particular case. I
know Your Honor was not here when we actually tried the case, but I
know that you did hear our petition for writ of habeas corpus. I
believe you’re familiar with the facts.

Essentially, the Defendant in this case went up to an
individual while she was seated at a bus stop and he employed this
ruse to get the phone away from her and then tcok off running with
the phone. When she ultimately got her phone back later on that
evening; the Defendant had scmehow changed the number and it was
potentially his number that was associated with the phone through a
Sims car or some other means. And that was the same number that he
had had her dial, so even before he got the phcne in his pdssession
he wasn’t intending to make a phone call. He was just trying to
get it away from her person.

and your -- Your Honor, the reason the State’s asking for

2
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that 14 to 48 month sentence is because the Defendant in this case
has one prior felony.conviction. It was a battery with a deadly
weapon conviction, but it started out as a robbery with a deadly
weapon. From the beginning of this case that’s given the State
concern.

What happened in that underlying case was he ran up te an
individual in an alley way or something, tock property from the
individual. I believe it was a camcorder, a hand held camcorder.
When that individual then attempted to retrieve that property, the
Defendant swung some sort of knife or machete at that individual.
And that’s how we ended up with z battery with a deadly weapon.

The reascn that was S0 concerning to the State is it
essentially started out just like this particular case here. He
approaches some citizen, doesn’t know out on the street and then
gets property away from them. And so that was the big concern for
the State.

Additicnally on that case, he did receive probation. He
was on probation approximately one month before his first
violation. He got reinstated at that timé. Andrthen he was
ultimately revoked about six months later.

So he’s already indicated that he’s somebody who can’t be
supervised cn probation. He absconded in that casé. Was using
narcotics and having issues with being supervised. And so the
State does think that prison is -- 1s appropriate in this

particular case in light of his criminal history and his failure at
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probation previcusly. He has a hundred thirty three &ays credit,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: And what are you suggesting for his underlying?
I’'m sorry. I think you mentioned it before.

MS. SUDANO: TFourteen to ferty-eight, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Ibarra, do you have'anything to say before I sentence’
you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. I just want to apologize for my
actions. I hear what Ms, Sudano is saying there about my fiist
conviction. It happened like about almost ten years ago. It's
been a long time. I don’t a lot of program and I done a lot of
change in that period of time. I actually completed my parcle. I
had an honorable discharge. I’ve been supervised and I even
completed programs as well as -~ as numerous different types of
counseling programs. |

I do understand that -- that I did -- it’s been almost
ten years like I said. But I just i want to ask for opportunity
to, you know, re-entry with probation or even an inpatient drug
program or something to allow me to get back on a right -- on a
right road to get my -~ my stuff and my life back together.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Counsel.

MR. WOOD: Your Honor, as Ms. Sudanco has indicated, you're
aware of the issues, We did file the petition. Essentially he

asked to borrow a phone and then took off running. There were no
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threats. There was nothing ever made, And ~- and I think there’s
still merit to that issue.

Given that though, I would point out to the Court that
he’s got one prior felony and that’s it. That happened eight years
ago, so that’s =-- he’s made changes. He slipped, vyou know -- and
chbviously we —-- we contest the nature of the charge here and our
appeal’s unit will deal with that, but ultimately he was convicted.

So given the nature -- given his history of one prior
felony and given the fact that that was eight years ago and this
case involves no violence, it didn’t involve any threats. The girl
did receive her property back. I would ask that the Court give him
an opportunity. I would ask for the Court to hang something maybe
perhaps heavier over his head to demonstrate to him the necessities|
of following the straight and narrow, so perhaps an underlying of a
19 +o 48 or a 24 to 60 and an admonishment that this is his chance.

But I do think given the facts of this case and given his
prior history, I do think a shot at probation would be warranted.
I'11 submit 1it.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Well, sir, your last offense you said almost ten years
ago. Well, you got off paper three years ago.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. I understand that. I had an
honorable discharge. I did all of my time pretty much, so I paid
for that, you know. And I do understand, vyou know, that I did

something and I do understand your position. But at the same time,
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sir, I just want to, you know, change my life. You know, I don’t -

- T don’t want toc just, you know, be a scrub my whole life. You

know, I do want to get on the right path and T want to, you know,

make changes. I just need opportunities, sir. I'm pretty sure I

can -- I can succeed.

THE COURT: Court’s going to sentence you -- and by -- by the

way, Carol, like I said he's adjudged guilty. It was based upon
Jury verdict.
THE CLERK: Ckay.

THE COURT: Make sure the record is clear in that regard.

a

I’m going to sentence you to confinement, sir, to Nevada

Department of Corrections -for a maximum term of 36 months, minimum

term of 14 months. You’re ordered to pay a $25 administrative

assessment fee, $3 DNA cellection fee, the cne-fifty DNA fee is

waived; it was taken in another case, 5250 to the indigent defense

fund. And 133 dollars [sic] credit for time served. Good luck,
sir.
rProceeding concluded at 10:18 a.m.]
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